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Profile
Century Aluminum Company produces primary aluminum. The company has three operating locations:
e Century Aluminum subsidiaries own 80 percent of and operate a reduction plant at Hawesviile,
Kentucky with capacity to produce 237,000 metric tonnes per year (mtpy) of primary aluminum;
¢ Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. operates a reduction plant at Ravenswood, West Virginia
with capacity to produce 168,000 mtpy; and
* Berkeley Aluminum Company owns a 49.67-percent share in a reduction piant at Mt. Holly, South
Carolina with capacity to produce 215,000 mtpy.
The company’s corporate offices are located in Monterey, California.

Table of Contents The Cover
Accomplishments of 2001 4] Don Sheiman, potline
Alumina 02 general supervisor at
Hawesville Operations

Anodes 05 . A

. is framed on the right
MeTaI Production 06 by bus bars that carry
Maintenance 09 electric power into the
Metal Sales and Hedging 10 reduction cells and
Financial Highlights 12 above by vents that
Letter to Shareholders 13 carry away emissions
Fi ial Secti 19 for cleaning. Century

m?ncra ection acquired the plant in 2001.

Officers and Directors 61

Corporate information 62




Accomplishments of 2001

Century Aluminum reported a financial loss for 2001. A weakened world
economy reduced the demand for aluminum and depressed prices.
Nevertheless, we took a number of major steps that strengthened our
position in primary aluminum and improved our competitiveness:

* Completed the acquisition of the Hawesville plant that increased our
production capacity and reduced average cash costs

* Remained cash flow positive after payment of interest on the debt
raised for the Hawesville acquisition

* Moved to indexed pricing for all alumina contracts which reduced our
cash break-even point and acts as a natural hedge for production

* Excluding alumina, we hedged 20 percent of production at the start of
2002 and 30 percent in 2003 at prices well above current market levels

* Lowered the company’s cash break-even point for 2002 and moved
it still lower for 2003

* Put in place plans to attain an annual savings rate of $10 million in
cash operating costs by the end of 2002

We are building Century into a larger and lower cost producer of primary
aluminum. We are structuring the company to withstand the down cycles
and participate in the up cycles of our industry.

These accomplishments are described further on the pages that follow.



Alumina

Primary aluminum is made from aluminum oxide, more commonly called
alumina. Alumina is a major cost component, accounting for about one-
third of the cost to produce primary aluminum.

Century does not produce alumina. The company purchases nearly one
million metric tons a year under long-term contracts. The prices of these
purchases now are indexed to the price of aluminum on the London Metal
Exchange (LME).

There are two important effects realized from the new pricing system:

* Since alumina costs are indexed to the price of aluminum on the
LME, earnings will be more stable throughout business cycles.

* The pricing provides a natural hedge for approximately 25 percent of
Century’s metal-producing capacity of 465,000 metric tonnes a year,
which will lower costs in poor market conditions.

Alumina is chemically refined from bauxite, the richest of many alumina-
bearing ores. Depending on its richness, approximately four units of
bauxite yield the two units of alumina required to produce one unit of alu-
minum metal. To make primary aluminum, oxygen atoms in alumina
(Al2Q3) are separated from the aluminum atoms through electrolytic reduc-
tion. Following separation, the molten aluminum drops to the bottom of
the electrolytic cell and is siphoned off periodically.
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Stuart Douglas, mainte-
nance engineer, stands
at the storage bay for
“green”carbon ancdes
at Ravenswood
Operations. The anodes
will be baked in large,
in-ground natural gas-
fired furnaces.

Anodes

In the primary aluminum process, carbon blocks are suspended in the
electrolytic cells to carry electricity through a bath material composed of
alumina and cryolite. The blocks are the anodes and the cells’ refractory-
lined steel shells house the carbon cathodes in the electroiytic process.

The electricity separates the oxygen and aluminum atoms in the alumina.
The anodes are consumed as the carbon combines with the oxygen in the
alumina. Anodes are replaced every 16-t0-24 days depending on their
size. Based on cell technology, cathode life ranges from five to 10 years.

Anodes are made of calcined coke, recycled material from spent anodes
and a coal-tar pitch binder. They are shaped and then baked in large
in-ground, gas-fired furnaces. Anodes affect production costs in their
manufacture and in cell efficiency.

* In manufacturing, Century is testing new anode shapes that promise
savings of about $300,000 a year in material costs; and a company-
developed firing system is reducing natural gas consumption in the
baking process.

* To raise cell efficiency, Century is optimizing the aggregate sizing of
the coke used to produce the anodes. This work is yielding improve-
ments in anode consumption and current conductivity.



Metal Production

Century produces standard grades of aluminum that are soid at world
market prices quoted on the London Metal Exchange. The company also
produces high value grades and forms of metal that command premiums
over the prices for standard grades.

In this pricing structure, Century must constantly reduce costs to remain
competitive. These efforts involve major structural changes, such as the
new alumina pricing contracts begun in 2002. Still others involve hundreds
of comparatively small improvements in operating performance. Here are
two current examples:

* Production drops and costs rise when reduction cells fail prematurely
and must be repaired or relined. Century uses computer-generated
thermal profiling to locate points of elevated temperatures in cells —
a major cause of failure. The data is then used to modify construction
and operating parameters to extend cell life.

* Thousands of air valves perform critical functions in the operation of
a reduction line. Powerful electric motors drive the compressors that
supply air to the valves. Eliminating costly, energy-wasting air leaks
is a maintenance priority.

Such efforts are expected to produce company-wide cost savings at a
rate of $10 million a year by the end of 2002.
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Denise Miller removes

a part from inventory

in the newly built
storeroom at
Ravenswood Operations.

Maintenance

Maintenance helps sustain the 24-hour/seven-day-a-week operating
schedule of an aluminum reduction plant. Maintenance also is a large cost
component of producing aluminum — exceeded only by power, raw mate-
rials and wages and salaries.

Core maintenance practices are routine and recurring. They keep plants
running continuously, efficiently and at designed capacity. At Century,
these core practices focus on increasing operating time using historical
data and scheduled maintenance checks. The objectives are to predict
maintenance needs and intercede before equipment fails.

Among Century’s newest maintenance-improvement efforts are information
systems that manage the diverse aspects of the process. One new system
is expected to increase the productive time of each maintenance employee
by one hour each day. Achieving the goal relies on precise coordination
between job schedules and parts inventories to eliminate costly downtime
and rush orders for parts. The new programs are especially effective at
recording the history of each part in inventory, including its specifications,
purchase date, location, and previous uses and repairs if any.

At Ravenswood Operations, construction of a new storeroom for storing
parts was completed in 2001..The modern facility includes storage and
handling systems that improve response time to requests for parts.



Metal Sales and Hedging

Century’s sales and hedging strategies are structured to help diminish the
financial impact from market downturns and reduce cash operating costs.
At the same time, these strategies leave adequate opportunity to partici-
pate in market upturns.
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* About 65 percent of metal production is sold under long-term

contract to three customers — Pechiney Rolled Products Company,
Southwire Company and Glencore International AG. Pechiney and
Southwire receive molten metal from adjacent Century facilities.
Casting and transportation savings reduce operating costs and are
shared with the customers.

Acquisitions in 2000 and 2001 doubled Century’s metal production
capacity. They were completed without a significant increase in
corporate overhead due, in part, to long-term sales contracts with
Glencore and Southwire. The contracts were signed concurrently
with the acquisitions.

Century is a major world producer of high-purity aluminum and the
largest producer of ultra-pure metal. Specially constructed and oper-
ated reduction lines at Hawesville produce this premium quality
metal. Southwire uses it to manufacture wire and cable. The metal
also is used widely in aircraft components and auto wheels.

Entering 2002 about 45 percent of Century’s metal production was
hedged by alumina or sold forward at prices substantially above cur-
rent levels. This will rise to 55 percent in 2003, helping to reduce
Century’s break-even point in both years.

Larry Singleton,

casting operator,
monitors the process
for casting billet at
Century’s 49.67-percent
owned Mt. Holly (SC)
reduction plant.






Financial Highlights

Years Ended December 31 2001 2000

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net Sales $ 6549 $ 4286
Cost of Goods Sold 634.2 396.1
Net Income (Loss) Before Preferred Dividends (13.7) 25.3
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:

Basic 0.74) 1.25

Diluted 0.74) 1.24
EBITDA* 51.7 34.5
Annual Dividend per Common Share .20 .20
Total Assets 776.7 333.8
Total Debt 329.3 0.0

*EBITDA represents operating income (loss} plus depreciation and amortization, plus or minus inventory write-downs and LIFO adjust-
ments. EBITDA should not be considered an alternative measure of operating results or cash flow from operations, as determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by others.




Letter To Shareholders

. Dear Shareholder:

- For the year, demand for aluminum contracted 12 percent in the U.S.

2001 was a difficult year by any measure.

We began the year with serious concerns over weakness in the industrial
sector of the economy. Our concerns grew as the full U.S. economy began

faltering. Conditions were made worse by the profoundly tragic events of |
September 11. |

-~ and seven percent in the Western World, the worst performance in 25
~ years. Aluminum prices reached 31-month lows. Our price realizations
. for the year were $0.03 a pound lower than in 2000. We reported a dis-

appointing full-year financial loss. Nevertheless, the company remained
cash-flow positive.

We completed the acquisition of the Hawesville plant on April 1. Initially,

the transaction was delayed by unsettled conditions in credit markets. In
early 2001, we formulated an alternative approach by changing the financ- -
ing structure and accepting a partner in the project. Glencore, our major .
. shareholder, acquired a 20-percent share in the facility and purchased $25
million of Century convertible preferred stock. We completed the acquisi- |

tion shortly thereafter.

- The Hawesville plant has the capacity to produce 237,000 metric tonnes |

| per year (mtpy) of primary aluminum. Our 80-percent share increased

- Century’s total capacity to 465,000 mtpy. The transition to new ownership .

i has been smooth. Operations have improved continuously. Production in

November and December was the highest in the plant’s 30-year history.
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Making Century More Competitive
" We have structured the company to be more competitive under varying
economic conditions. This helps diminish the financial impact of market
downturns, while leaving adequate room to participate in upward price
" movements:

* The Hawesville plant is the largest and lowest cost of the three facil- |
ities in which we own an interest. With its acquisition we reduced our |
cash operating costs by about $0.04 a pound.

* Prices for all of our alumina purchases now are indexed to aluminum
prices on the London Metal Exchange, reducing our cash break-even
point in weak markets and creating a natural hedge for about 25 per-
cent of our production.

* Electric power is a major cost in producing primary aluminum. For
example, in the U.S. Northwest in 2001, nine reduction plants, with

| 1.5 million metric tonnes (mt) of capacity, stood idle due to prohibi-
i tively high power prices caused by regional shortages and energy
| problems in California. By comparison, Century’s power supplies are
purchased under firm contracts at long-term, stable prices that com- |

pare favorably with those in the U.S. primary aluminum industry.

* About 65 percent of the metal we produce is sold under long-term con-
tracts to three solid customers. We acquired 240,000 mt of capacity at
Mt. Holly and Hawesville without a significant increase in corporate |
overhead. At Ravenswood and Hawesville, molten aluminum is sup-
plied to adjacent customer plants. This arrangement produces savings
in freight and casting that are shared with the customers.

* In 2002 and continuing through 2003 we have forward sales of metal,
including hedges, at prices well above current levels.




Beyond these structural changes, we constantly seek to reduce costs. We
recognize that we are not the low-cost producer, yet we compete in a
cost-driven commodity business. Our goals are stringent yet realistic. We
expect to attain a savings rate of $10 million in cash operating costs by
the end of 2002.

The net effect of this series of structural and operating changes is that our |
cash break-even point will be lower in 2002 than in 2001 and still lower in
2003, making Century more competitive in all economic scenarios.

A strong team of operating managers, pictured on page 17, is leading
these efforts. They have broad managerial experience in the aluminum
industry and their success is being greatly facilitated by the dedication
and knowledge of our 1,540 employees.

Looking Ahead

Our strategic objective remains fixed on strengthening Century’s primary
aluminum assets and improving our overall competitive position. We
intend to acquire assets that lower cash operating costs further and diver-
sify our geographic presence. As we grow and enhance our portfolio of
assets, we expect to build a broader investor base and to improve our
financing flexibility. We have identified attractive acquisition opportunities.
We will pursue them when economic conditions improve and with appro-
priate consideration for our balance sheet.

Our near-term focus is on primary aluminum assets. Our main interest is
in existing capacity. We would consider brownfield or greenfield projects.
We also would consider upstream integration into bauxite and alumina |
and other special situations in aluminum.
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Earlier this year we announced the beginning of an orderly management
succession plan. | have elected to step down as chief executive at the end
of 2002. Gerry Meyers, president and chief operating officer, will succeed
me. He has a wealth of aluminum industry experience and has successfully
guided the operations of our company since its founding. | will continue as
chairman until the end of 2004 and will devote most of my attention to the
company’s long-term strategies, especially those related to growth.

| am proud of the team that has transformed Century from a relatively
high-cost producer of primary aluminum and semi-fabricated products

- into a focused, larger and lower-cost producer of primary aluminum. |

have great confidence that Gerry and the management team that we have
assembled will continue to build Century into a more successful and sig-

- nificant producer of aluminum. The management team is pictured on the

opposite page.

| want to thank our employees and capable advisors who helped Century
to make great strides forward in an otherwise difficult year.

Lir—

Craig A. Davis
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
April 22, 2002
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Tony Powers, metal
handler in the cast
house at Hawesville
Operations, stamps
data into an ingot that
records its path
through the plant.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion reflects the Company’s historical
results of operations, which (1) includes the Company’s rolling
and fabricating businesses until they were sold in September
1999, (2) does not include results from the Company’s addi-
tional interest in the Mt. Holly facility until it was acquired in
April 2000 and (3) does not include resuits from the Company’s
80% interest in the Hawesville facility until it was acquired
in April 2001. Accordingly, the following discussion of the
Company’s results of operations is not indicative of Century’s
current business. The reader should read the following discus-
sion in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this filing.

Overview

The Company is a producer of primary aluminum, and the
Company’s net sales are derived from the sale of primary alu-
minum. On September 21, 1999, the Company sold its rolling
and fabrication businesses to Pechiney. Effective April 1, 2000,
the Company increased its ownership of the Mt. Holly facility to
49.67% by acquiring an additional 23% interest for a cash purchase
price of $94.7 million. The Mt. Holly facility has an annual produc-
tion capacity of 480 million pounds of primary aluminum, and
Century’s interest represents 238 million pounds of that capacity.

On April 1, 2001, the Company acquired from Southwire, a
privately-held wire and cable manufacturing company, all of
the outstanding stock of Metalsco, formerly a wholly owned
subsidiary of Southwire. Metalsco owns NSA, which owns and
‘operates the Hawesville facility. The Hawesville facility has the
capacity to produce 523 million pounds of primary aluminum
per year. The Company also acquired from Southwire, certain
land, facilities and rights related to NSA’s aluminum reduction
operations which were not held by NSA. The cash purchase
price for the Hawesville acquisition was $466.8 million. The
Company also assumed industrial revenue bonds related to
the Hawesville facility in the principal amount of $7.8 million
and Century may be required to make additional post closing
payments to Southwire of up to $7.0 million. In connection with
the acquisition, Glencore effectively purchased from Century
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a 20% interest in the Hawesville facility for $99.0 million and
assumed responsibility for payment of 20% of the principal
amount of the industrial revenue bonds and payment of a pro
rata portion of any post-closing payments made to Southwire.
Glencore also purchased $25.0 million of convertible preferred
stock of the Company with an 8% cumulative dividend pref-
erence. In connection with its financing of the transaction,
the Company issued to certain institutional investors $325.0
million of its senior secured first mortgage notes (the “Notes”)
due 2008 in a private offering exempt from registration under
the Securities Act of 1933. In November 2001, the Company
exchanged the Notes for a like principal amount of 11 3/4%
senior secured first mortgage notes due 2008 (the “Exchange
Notes”), which are registered under the Securities Act of 1933.

The aluminum industry is cyclical and the market price of
primary aluminum (which trades as a cémmodity) is determined
by worldwide supply and demand. The Company’s results of
operations depend to a large degree on the market price of pri-
mary aluminum. Any adverse changes in the conditions that
affect the market price of primary aluminum could have a mate-
rial adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations.

The principal elements comprising the Company’s cost of
goods sold are raw materials, power and labor. The principal
raw materials used by the Company in its production process
are alumina, coal tar, pitch, petroleum coke and aluminum
fluoride. Pursuant to a supply contract with Aicoa which expired
as of December 31, 2001, the Company paid a fixed price
for the alumina used at the Ravenswood facility and 54% of
the Company’s requirements at the Mt. Holly facility. All of the
Company’s remaining alumina requirements are purchased
under variable-price contracts with the price of alumina
purchased linked to the LME price for primary aluminum. [n
connection with its acguisition of Xstrata's 23% interest in the
Mt. Holly facility, the Company assumed Xstrata’s long-term
variable-price supply contract with Glencore which provides
the additional alumina required as a result of the Company’s
increased interest in the Mt. Holly facility. The Company



purchases the alumina it uses at the Hawesville facility from
Kaiser Aluminum and Chemical Corporation (“Kaiser”) under a
variable-price supply contract which runs through 2005.
{(Kaiser and certain wholly owned subsidiaries filed voluntary
petitions under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Laws on
February 12, 2002.) The Company has received assurances
from Kaiser managementv that Kaiser will continue to perform
under this alumina supply agreement, and the Company is
seeking to have the contract assumed through the bankruptcy
process, but there can be no assurance the Company will be
successful. Beginning January 1, 2002, the Company replaced
its fixed-price supply contract with Alcoa with a five-year
variable-price supply contract with Glencore which will supply
the alumina used at the Ravenswood facility and for 54% of
the Company’s requirements at the Mt. Holly facility. As a result,
beginning January 1, 2002 all of the Company’s alumina
requirements will be purchased under variable-price contracts
linked to market prices for primary aluminum.

The Company uses significant amounts of electricity in the alu-
minum production process. Under the terms of the Company’s
supply contract with Ohio Power, the Company pays a fixed
price for the power used at the Ravenswood facility. That
agreement expires on July 31, 2003. American Electric Power
Company (the parent of Ohio Power Company) has advised
the Company that the Company is eligible to enter into a new
fixed-price power supply agreement with Ohio Power upon the
termination of its existing agreement. The new agreement, the
terms of which are established by a tariff approved by the
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, would expire not later than
December 31, 2005. The tariff was created pursuant to a require-
ment of the State of Ohio’s electric power deregulation act and
will govern electrical power service during a transitional period in
which competitive power markets are expected to be developed.
Under the terms of the supply contracts with South Carolina
Public Service Authority which extend to 2005, the Company pays
prices set by Authority Rate Schedules and Clauses (including
a fuel adjustment clause) for power used at the Mt. Holly facility.
The Hawesville facility currently purchases its power requirements

from Kenergy, under an agreement which expires at the end of
2010, mostly at fixed prices. The Company’s results of opera-
tions in 2001 were adversely impacted by $5.4 million as the
result of increases in natural gas and purchased off-system
power costs during the first half of 2001 and increased coal
costs during the second half of 2001 which triggered fuel cost
adjustments in the Mt. Holly facility power supply contract.

The Company’s labor costs are subject to the terms of labor
contracts which generally have provisions for annual fixed
increases in hourly wages and benefits adjustments. On June 1,
1999, the Company entered into a new four-year labor con-
tract with its hourly workers at the Ravenswood facility. On
March, 8, 2002, the labor agreement was extended through
May 31, 2006. In connection with the Hawesville acquisition, .
the Company negotiated a collective bargaining agreement
with the USWA which covers all of the represented hourly
employees at the Hawesville facility. Under this agreement,
the Company established the terms of employment for USWA
employees and settled all claims relating to a work stoppage
which occurred during Southwire’s ownership of the facility.
The agreement was ratified by the USWA local on September
28, 2000, became effective upon closing of the Hawesville
acquisition and has a five-year term. The agreement provides
for fixed increases in hourly wages and certain benefits adjust-
ments in its first, third and fifth years. The work rules under the
new collective bargaining agreement are substantially similar
to those previously in place at the Hawesville facility.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the years indicated, the
percentage relationship to net sales of certain items included
in the Company’s Statements of Operations. The following
table includes the results from the Company’s rolling and
fabrication businesses until its sale in September 1999, the
results from the Company’s additional 23% interest in Mt. Holly
facility since its acquisition in April 2000, and the results from
the Company’s 80% interest in the Hawesville facility since
its acquisition on April 1, 2001.
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Percentage of net sales

2001 2000 1999

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods sold » 96.8 92.4 101.2
Gross profit {loss) 3.2 7.6 (1.2)
Selling, general and administrative expenses » 2.9 3.3 3.3
Operating income (loss) 0.3 4.3 (4.5)
Gain on sale of fabricating businesses . _ - 1.2 7.2
Interest expense 4.8) (0.1) (0.9)
Interest income 0.1 0.6 0.3
Other income (expense) 0.4 1.5 (0.1)
Net gain (loss) on forward contracts - 1.0 (1.0
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes (4.0) 8.5 1.0
Income tax benefit (expense) 1.5 (2.6) (0.1)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary item and minority interest (2.5) 5.9 0.9
Minority Interest—net _ 0.4 - -
Net income (loss) before extraordinary item (2.1) 5.9 0.9

Extraordinary item—uwrite-off of deferred bank fees - - 0.2) .

Net income (loss) (2.1)% 5.9% 0.7%

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the pounds and the average sales price per pound for certain of the
Company’s products:

Primary Aluminum Sheet and Plate Products
. Direct ) @ Direct ® Toll
(Pounds in thousands) Pounds $/Pound Pounds $/Pound Pounds $/Pound
2001
First Quarter 149,274 $ 0.74 - - - -
Second Quarter © 255,145 $ 0.74 - - - -
Third Quarter 259,408 $ 0.71 - - - -
Fourth Quarter 254,616 $ 0.68 - - - -
Total 918,443 $ 071 - - - -
2000
First Quarter 128,082 $ 0.75 - - - -
Second Quarter @ 149,530 $ 0.73 - - - -
Third Quarter 151,219 $ 073 - - - -
Fourth Quarter 152,787 $ 073 - . - - -
Total 581,618 $ 0.74 - - - -
1999
First Quarter 122,250 $ 0.63 113,751 $ 1.18 4,405 $ 0.25
Second Quarter 131,018 $ 0.63 118,579 $ 117 2,357 $ 0.23
Third Quarter @ 116,583 $ 0.66° 100,339 $ 1.16 1,818 $ 0.23
Fourth Quarter 115,991 $ 0.70 - $ - - $ -
Total 485,842 $ 0.65 327,669 $ 117 8,580 $ 0.24

(1) Does not include materials and products processed by the Company for a fee (“tolling”} and forward sales contracts without physical delivery.

(2) For the year 1899, the primary aluminum segment includes intersegment sales to the sheet and plate products segment.

(3) The table includes the results from the Company'’s rolling and fabrication businesses until its sale in September 1993, The Company sold its fabricating businesses to Pechiney in September 1999.
(4) The table includes results from the Company’s additional 23% interest in Mt. Holly facility since its acquisition in April 2000.

(5) The table includes the results from the Company’s 80% interest in the Hawesville facility since its acquisition on April 1, 2001.
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Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended
December 31, 2000

The following discussion reflects Century’s historical resuits of
operations, which do not include results from the Company’s
additional interest in the Mt. Holly facility until it was acquired
in April 2000 and do not include results for the Company’s 80%
interest in the Mawesville facility until it was acquired in April 2001.

Net Sales Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2001
increased 52.8% to $654.9 million from $428.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000. The increase was primarily the
result of increased volumes from the Hawesville facility begin-
ning April 1, 2001 and the Company’s additional 23% interest in
the Mt. Holly facility beginning April 1, 2000 and was partially
offset by declining market prices for primary aluminum.

Gross Profit Gross profit for year ended December 31, 2001
decreased $11.8 million to $20.7 million from $32.5 million for
the same period in 2000. The decrease was primarily the result
of (a) declining market prices for primary aluminum, (b) the
electrical power cost increase of $5.4 million at the Mt. Holly
facility during the year ended December 31, 2001 (c) net LIFO
and lower of cost or market inventory adjustments of $5.2 mil-
lion and $1.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively. These items were partially offset by
gross margins on sales volume from the Company’s additional
interest in the Mt. Holly facility beginning in April 2000 and the
Hawesville facility acquisition beginning in April 2001.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses Selling, general
and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31,
2001 increased to $18.6 million from $13.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. The increases were a direct result
of a charge for bad debts of $4.4 million during the year ended
December 31, 2001 and the inciusion of the Company’s pro
rata share of selling, general and administrative expenses from
the Hawesville facility following the Hawesville acquisition
in April 2001.

Operating Income or Loss Operating income for the year
ended December 31, 2001 was $2.1 million. This compares with
operating income of $18.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2000. Changes in operating income are primarily a result of
changes in gross profit and increases in selling, general and
administrative expenses for the reasons discussed above.

Gain On Sale of Fabricating Businesses For the year ended
December 31, 2000, the Company recorded a gain on the sale
of its fabricating businesses of $5.2 million. This resulted from
the settiement of post-closing adjustments to the transaction
as originally recorded.

Interest Expense ‘Interest expense during the year ended
December 31, 2001 was $31.6 million. This compares with inter-
est expense of $0.4 million during 2000. The change in interest
was a result of the borrowings required to fund the Hawesville
acquisition in April 2001.

Interest Income Interest income during the year ended
December 31, 2001 was $0.9 million. This compares with inter-
est income of $2.7 million during 2000. The change in interest
was a result of using available cash to fund the acquisition of
the Hawesville facility in April 2001.

Other Income/Expense Other income for the year ended
December 31, 2001 was $2.6 million. This compares with other
income of $6.5 million for the same period in 2000. The change
in other income resulted principally from the receipt of $3.4 mii-
lion and $6.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively, in settlement of the Company’s busi-
ness interruption and property damage claim with its insurance
carrier. The claim was a result of the illegal work stoppage at
the Ravenswood facility in August 1999. The insurance settle-
ment was partially offset by a loss on disposal of assets of $0.9
million during the year ended December 31, 2001."

Net Gains/Losses on Forward Contracts For the year ended
December 31, 2001 the Company recorded a loss on forward
contracts of $0.2 million. For the year ended December 31, 2000
the Company recorded a gain of $4.2 million. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative instruments
and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, effec-
tive January 1, 2001. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Company’s forward financial sales and pur-
chase contracts, which were previously recorded at fair value
through the Statement of Operations, have been designated as
cash flow hedges as of January 1, 2001. To the extent cash flow
hedges are effective, unrealized gains and losses on forward
financial sales and purchase contracts are no longer reported
in the Statement of Operations, but rather are reported in
accumulated other comprehensive income on a net of tax basis
and reclassified into earnings when realized.
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Tax Provision/Benefit Income tax benefit for the year ended
December 31, 2001 was $10.0 million. This compares with
income tax expense of $11.3 million for the same period in
2000. The change in income taxes was a result of the Company’s
pre-tax loss in 2001. The change in the 2001 effective tax rate
from the year ended December 31, 2000 was a result of the
reduction in 2000 of estimated income taxes payable relating
to the reversal of prior period accruals.

Net Income or Loss before Minority Interest The Company had
a net loss before minority interest of $16.1 miliion during the
year ended December 31, 2001 compared to net income of $25.3
million during the comparable 2000 period. Net income before
minority interest decreased for the reasons discussed above.

Minority Interest Minority Interest reflects Glencore’s interest
in the net operating results of Century Aluminum of Kentucky,
LLC (the “LLC"), the limited liability company which holds the
power contract for the Hawesville facility, which consists of
amortization of the power contract.

Net Income The Company had a net loss of $13.7 million
during the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to a net
income of $25.3 million during the comparable 2000 period. Net
income decreased for the reasons discussed above.

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Ended
December 31, 1999

Net Sales Consolidated net sales decreased 24.3% to $428.6
million in 2000 from $566.3 million in 1999. The decrease was
primarily the result of the sale of the Company’s rolling and
fabrication businesses which generated $248.9 million in net
sales (after adjusting for $136.8 million in intercompany trans-
fers of primary aluminum) prior to its disposition in September
1999. The $248.9 million in net sales relating to the rolling and
fabrication businesses includes $2.0 million in tolling fees. No
tolling fees were earned in 2000 due to the sale of the rolling
and fabrication businesses in 1999. Excluding the effects of the
sale of the roling and fabrication businesses, net sales
increased by $111.2 million, resulting from a 95.8-million-pound
increase in primary aluminum shipments from 485.8 million
pounds in 1999 to 581.6 million pounds in 2000 and an increase
in the average unit selling prices for primary aluminum to $0.74
per pound in 2000 from $0.65 per pound in 1999. Shipments in
2000 included 84 million pounds from the acquisition of an
additional interest in Mt. Holly, which were sold at an average
price of $0.73 per pound. Shipments in 1999 were impacted by
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the loss of approximately 15 million pounds resulting from an
illegal work stoppage at the Ravenswood facility in August 1999.
The increase in average realized prices was primarily the resuit
of an increase in the average LME price for the period in which
the Company’s sales were priced.

Gross Profit or Loss Gross profit for the year ended December
31, 2000 was $32.5 million compared to a loss of $6.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 1999. Gross profit of the primary
aluminum segment was $32.5 million in 2000 compared to a
loss of $17.2 million in 1999. Gross profit of the primary alu-
minum segment in 2000 increased by $40.7 million as a result
of higher realized prices in 2000 and $8.0 million as a result of
increased primary aluminum shipments. Gross profit of the
primary aluminum segment was impacted by a $1.6 miflion
charge to adjust inventory to its estimated realizable value in
2000, a $1.8 million credit as a result of a one time alumina sale
in 2000 and a $4.6 million charge to value primary aluminum
inventories on a stand alone LIFO basis after the sale of the
rolling and fabrication businesses that were sold in September
1999. Gross profit of the sheet and plate segment, which con-
sisted of the rolling and fabrication businesses that were sold
in September 1999, was $10.7 million in 1999.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses Consolidated
selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 26.5%
to $13.9 million in 2000 from $18.9 million in 1999. The decrease
was primarily due to the sale of the Company’s rolling and
fabrication businesses in September 1999.

Gain on Sale of Rolling and Fabrication Businesses For the
year ended December 31, 2000, the Company recorded a gain
on the sale of its fabricating businesses of $5.2 million. This
resulted from the settlement of post-closing adjustments
to the transaction as originally recorded. For the year ended
December 31, 1999, the Company recorded a gain on the sale
of its fabricating businesses of $41.1 miilion.

Interest Expense Interest expense of $0.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. This compares with interest expense
of $5.2 million during 1999. The change in interest was due to
the lack of borrowing in 2000.

Interest Income  Interest income for the year ended December
31, 2000 was $2.6 million. This compares with interest income
of $1.7 million during 1999. The change in interest was due to
the tack of borrowing and increased earnings on invested cash
in 2000.



Other Income or Expense Other income was $6.5 million in
2000 compared to other expense of $0.8 million in 1899. The
increase in other income was primarily due to the receipt of
approximately $6.1 million in partial settlement of the Company’s
claim with its insurance providers relative to property damage
and business interruption losses resulting from the illegal work
stoppage at the Ravenswood facility in August 1999.

Net Gains or Losses on Forward Contracts Net gains on for-
ward contracts were $4.2 million in 2000 compared to a net
loss on forward contracts of $5.4 million in 1999. The increase
resulted from lower market prices for primary aluminum as of
December 31, 2000 with respect to the value of the Company’s
forward sales contracts on that date.

Tax Provision Income tax expense for the year ended
December 31, 2000 was $11.3 million compared to $0.6 million
for the same period in 1989. The increase was primarily due to
an increase in pre-tax income before extraordinary items of
$30.7 million from $5.9 million in 1999 to $36.6 million in 2000.
Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2000
and 1999, respectively, included a $2.4 million and $1.5 million
reduction in estimated income taxes payable relating to the
reversal of prior period accruals. These credits increased the
effective tax rate from 11% in 1999 to 31% in 2000,

Extraordinary Item The extraordinary item in 1999 was due to

a write-off of deferred bank fees, net of income tax benefit of»

$0.8 mitlion.

Net Income Net income increased to $25.3 million in 2000
from $3.9 million in 1999. The increase was due to higher unit
selling prices for primary aluminum, increased primary alu-
minum shipments, the acquisition of the additional interest in
the Mt. Holly facility and proceeds received on the Company’s
insurance claim related to the illegal work stoppage at the
Ravenswood facility.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

With the completion of the Hawesville acquisition and the sale
of the Notes, the Company’s principal sources of liquidity are
cash flow from operations and borrowings under the revolving
credit facility. The Company’s principal uses of cash are pay-
ments of interest on the Company’s outstanding debt and div-
idends on preferred and common stock, the funding of capital
expenditures and investments in related businesses, working
capital and other general corporate requirements.

Debt Service

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately $329.2
million of indebtedness outstanding, including $321.4 million
of principal amount of the Notes, net of unamortized issuance
discount, and $7.8 million in industrial revenue bonds which
were assumed in connection with the Hawesville acquisition.

Notes Interest payments on the 11 3/4% Senior Secured First
Mortgage Notes are payable semiannually in arrears beginning
on October 15, 2001. Payment obligations under the Notes are
unconditionally guaranteed by the Company’s domestic sub-
sidiaries [other than the Century Aluminum of Kentucky, LLC
(“LLC”)] and secured by mortgages and security interests
granted by two of the Company’s subsidiaries in all of their
respective interests in the real property, plant and equipment
comprising the Hawesville and Ravenswood facilities. The notes
will mature in 2008. The indenture governing the Notes con-
tains customary covenants, including limiting the Company’s
ability to pay dividends, incur debt, make investments, sell
assets or stock of certain subsidiaries, and purchase or redeem
capital stock. If the Company does not generate sufficient
cumulative earnings, Century would need to reduce or suspend
common and/or preferred dividends on or before January 2003
to comply with its note covenants. Pursuant to the terms of the
indenture, because the Company did not consummate a reg-
istered exchange offer for the outstanding notes on or before
September 30, 2001, the Company was required to pay addi-
tional interest on the outstanding notes at a rate of 0.5% over
the stated rate from September 30, 2001 until the exchange
offer was consummated on November 12, 2001.

Revolving Credit Facility In connection with the Hawesville
acquisition, the Company replaced its former $67.1 million
Revolving Credit Facility with a new $100.0 million Revolving
Credit Facility. The Company’s obligations under the Revolving
Credit Facility are unconditionally guaranteed by-its domestic
subsidiaries (other than the LLC) and secured by a first priority
security interest in all accounts receivable and inventory belong-
ing to the Company and its subsidiary borrowers. The avail-
ability of funds under the Revolving Credit Facility is subject to
a $30.0 million reserve and limited by a specified borrowing
base consisting of certain eligible accounts receivable and
inventory. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility are,
at the Company’s option, at the LIBOR rate or the Fleet
National Bank base rate plus, in each case, an applicable
interest margin. The applicable interest margin ranges from
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2.25% to 3.0% over the LIBOR rate and 0.75% to 1.5% over
the base rate and is determined by certain financial measure-
ments of the Company. The maturity date of the facility is
April 2, 2006. Interest periods for LIBOR rate borrowings are
one, two, three or six months, at the Company’s option. The
Company expects the borrowing base, less the reserve, will
permit the Company to borrow approximately $55.0 to $65.0
million under the Revolving Credit Facility. The Company is
subject to customary covenants, including restrictions on cap-
ital expenditures, additional indebtedness, liens, guarantees,
mergers and acquisitions, dividends, distributions, capital
redemptions and investments.

Industrial Revenue Bonds As part of the purchase price for
the Hawesville acquisition, the Company assumed industrial
revenue bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $7.8 mil-
lion which were issued in connection with the financing of
certain solid waste disposal facilities constructed at the
Hawesville facility. Pursuant to the Company’s agreement with
Glencore, Glencore will pay a pro rata portion of the debt service
costs of the industrial revenue bonds. The industrial revenue
bonds mature on April 1, 2028, are secured by a Glencore letter
of credit and bear interest at a variable rate not to exceed 12%
per annum determined weekly based upon prevailing rates for
similar bonds in the industrial revenue bond market. Interest on
the Industrial Revenue Bonds is paid quarterly. At December 31,
2001, the interest rate on the industrial revenue bonds was
2.05%. The bonds are classified as current liabilities because
they are remarketed weekly and, under the indenture govern-
ing the bonds, repayment upon demand could be required if
there is a failed remarketing.

Convertible Preferred Stock

In connection with the Hawesville acquisition, the Company
issued $25.0 million of Century Aluminum Company convert-
ible preferred stock to Glencore. The Company is required to
pay dividends on the preferred stock at a rate of 8% per year,
which is cumulative. The notes and the revolving credit facility
impose restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay cash divi-
dends on the convertible preferred stock.

Working Capital

Working capital was $66.4 million at December 31, 2001. The
Company believes that its working capital will be consistent
with past experience and that borrowing availability under the
revolving credit facility should be sufficient to meet working
capital needs.
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Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures for 2001 were approximately $14.5 million
and were principally related to upgrading production equip-
ment, maintaining facilities and complying with environmental
requirements. The revolving credit facility restricts the
Company'’s ability to make capital expenditures; however, the
Company believes that the amount permitted will be adequate
to maintain its properties and business and comply with
environmental requirements.

Acquisitions, Liquidity and Financing

The Company actively pursues opportunities to acquire pri-
mary aluminum reduction facilities, which offer favorable cost
structures and diversify the Company’s geographic presence,
and upstream integration opportunities into bauxite mining
and alumina refining. In connection with possible future acqui-
sitions, the Company may need additional financing, which
may be provided in the form of debt or equity. The Company
cannot be certain that any such financing will be available. The
Company anticipates that operating cash flow, together with
borrowings under the revolving credit facility, will be sufficient
to meet its future debt service obligations as they become
due, as well as working capital and capital expenditures
requirements. The Company’s ability to meet its liquidity
needs, including any and all of its debt service obligations, will
depend upon its future operating perférmance, which will be
affected by general economic, financial, competitive, regula-
tory, business and other factors, many of which are beyond the
Company’s control. The Company will continue from time to
time to explore additional financing methods and other means
to lower its cost of capital, including stock issuances or debt
financing and the application of the proceeds to the repayment
of bank debt or other indebtedness.

Historical

The Company’s statements of cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are summarized below:

(Dollars in thousands)

2001 2000 1999
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities $ 38,623 $ 58,103 §$ (44,190)
Net cash (used in) provided
by investing activities (382,245) (106,158) 222,886
Net cash (used in) provided
by financing activities 324,048 (4,170) (93,521)

(Decrease) increase in cash $(19,574) $(62,225) $ 85,175



Net cash from operating activities of $38.6 million in 2001 was
$19.5 million less than the $58.1 million from operating activi-
ties experienced in 2000. Net cash from operating activities of
$58.1 million in 2000 was $102.3 million more than the $44.2 mil-
lion use of cash experienced in 1999, The $19.5 million decline
in net cash from operating activities in 2001 is due primarily to
a $31.6 million increase in interest expense resulting from the
Hawesville acquisition which was partially offset by a $13.6
million increase in operating income before depreciation and
amortization. The improvement in operating income before
depreciation and amortization is comprised of increased vol-
ume and lower average unit production costs resulting from
the Hawesville acquisition which were significantly reduced by
declining metal prices. The increase in 2000 compared to 1999
was due to an increase in net income, adjusted to exclude the
effect of depreciation and amortization and any gains from dis-
positions, of $53.0 million related primarily to improved pricing
for aluminum, a reduction in required pension contributions of
approximately $17.5 million and a $43.0 million change in cash
flow relating to working capital. These increases in cash flow
were partially offset by a decrease in deferred tax expense
of $9.6 million related primarily to the sale of the rolling and
fabrication businesses during 1999. In 1999, working capital
was increased by $32.4 million primarily due to an increase in
receivables after the disposition of the rolling and fabrication
businesses. In 2000, the Company reduced working capital by
$10.6 million primarily through an increased focus on the col-
lection of receivables.

The Company’s net cash used for investing activities was
$382.2 million during 2001. The cash was used primarily for
the Hawesville acquisition and was partially offset by the pro-
ceeds from the sale to Glencore of the minority interest in the
Hawesville facility. The Company’s net cash used in investing
activities was $106.2 million during 2000. The cash was used
primarily for the acquisition of an additional interest in the Mt.
Holly facility in April 2000. The net cash provided by investing
activities was $222.9 million in 1999. This was provided primar-
ily from the receipt of cash from the sale of the rolling and
fabrication businesses in September 1999.

Net cash from financing activities was $324 million for 2001.
Net cash used in financing activities was $4.2 million for 2000
and $93.5 million for 1999. During 2001, the cash from financ-
ing activities was primarily from borrowings and the issuance
of preferred stock related to the Hawesville acquisition and

was partially offset by the payment of common and preferred
stock dividends. The $4.2 million use of cash in 2000 relates
solely to the payment of dividends whereas in 1999 the Company
also utilized a portion of the proceeds from the sale of its
rolling and fabrication businesses to retire all of the outstand-
ing bank debt.

On March 31, 1999, the Company entered into an agreement
with Fleet National Bank, formerly BankBoston, N.A. and the
CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc. (“Bank Agreement”), to pro-
vide a credit facility in the amount of up to $180.0 million to refi-
nance indebtedness, finance certain capital expenditures and
for other general corporate purposes. The borrowing base for
purposes of determining availability was based upon certain
eligible inventory and receivables. The credit facility consisted
of a revolving credit facility of up to $160.0 million and a
term loan of $20.0 million. The term loan was never drawn by
the Company. The revolving credit facility was secured by
the inventory and receivables of Century Aluminum of West
Virginia, Inc. and Berkeley Aluminum, Inc. In connection with
the sale of the rolling and fabrication businesses, the Company
repaid all of its indebtedness under the credit facility and
agreed with its lenders to reduce the revolving credit facility
from $160.0 million to $75.0 million, which was further reduced
to $67.1 million in April 2000. In April 2001, this credit facility
was replaced with a new $100.0 million revolving credit facility.
See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Environmental Expenditures and Other Contingencies

The Company has incurred and in the future will continue to
incur capital expenditures and operating expenses for matters
relating to environmental control, remediation, monitoring and
compliance. The aggregate environmental related accrued lia-
bilities were $1.8 million and $0.9 million at December 31, 2001
and December 31, 2000, respectively. The Company believes
that compliance with current environmental laws and regula-
tions is not likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operations or liquid-
ity; however, environmental laws and regulations may change,
and the Company may become subject to more stringent envi-
ronmental laws and regulations in the future. There can be no
assurance that compliance with more stringent environmental
laws and regulations that may be enacted in the future, or
future remediation costs, would not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of opera-
tions or liquidity.
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The Company has planned environmental capital expenditures
of approximately $2.7 million for 2002, $0.7 million for 2003
and $0.3 million for 2004. In addition, the Company expects to
incur operating expenses relating to environmental matters
of approximately $6.1 million, $5.9 million, and $6.5 million in
each of 2002, 2003 and 2004. As part of the Company’s general
capital expenditure plan, it also expects to incur capital
expenditures for other capital projects that may, in addition to
improving operations, reduce certain environmental impacts.

The Company is a defendant in several actions relating to var-
ious aspects of its business. While it is impossible to predict
the ultimate disposition of any litigation, the Company does not
believe that any of these lawsuits, either individually or in the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations or liguidity.

New Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB*)

issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138, which
amended certain provisions of SFAS No. 133, including an
amendment to expand the normal purchase and sale exemp-
tion for supply contracts. The Company was required to adopt
SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 138, on January 1, 2001.

The Company’s primary aluminum financial instruments, which
were previously recorded at fair value through the Statement
of Operations, were designated as cash flow hedges as of
January 1, 2001 and accordingly, to the extent the Company’s
cash flow hedges are effective, unrealized gains and losses are
reflected as accumulated other comprehensive income net of
tax while realized gains and losses are recorded as revenue or
expense. The Company’s natural gas financial instruments,
which are designated as cash flow hedges, were recorded at
fair value on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2001 and
2000. No transition adjustment was required upon adoption of
SFAS No. 133. As of December 31, 2001, the Company reported
a balance in accumulated other comprehensive income of
$6.8 mitlion.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) con-
tinues to identify and provide guidance on various implemen-
tation issues related to SFAS No's. 133 and 138 that are in
varying stages of review and clearance by the FASB. The
Company has adopted all FASB guidance that was required
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to be implerhented by December 31, 2001. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of pending FASB guidance
and has not determined if the ultimate resolution of those
issues would have a material impact on its financial statements.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations.” SFAS No. 141 requires the purchase method
of accounting for business combinations initiated after
September 30, 2001 and eliminates the pooling-of-interests
method. The Company is currently evaluating the cumulative
effect and ongoing impact of SFAS No. 141 on its financial
position and results of operations. There have been no busi-
ness acquisitions since the effective date of SFAS No. 141.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” which became effective January 1,
2002. SFAS No. 142 requires, among other things, the discon-
tinuance of goodwill amortization. In addition, the standard
includes provisions for the reclassification of certain existing
recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the
useful lives of existing recognized intangibles, reclassification
of certain intangibles out of previousiy reported goodwill and
the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing
potential future impairments of goodwill. SFAS No. 142 also
requires the Company to complete a transitional goodwill
impairment test six months from the date of adoption. The
Company is currently evaluating the cumulative effect and
ongoing impact of SFAS No. 142 on its financial position and
results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement establishes
standards for accounting for obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated
asset retirement costs. The standard is required to be adopted
by the Company beginning January 1, 2003. The Company is
currently assessing, but has not yet determined, the impact of
SFAS No. 143 onits financial position and results of operations.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets.” This statement
addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impair-
ment and disposal of long-lived assets. The standard became
effective January 1, 2002. The Company is developing a plan to
apply the provisions of this statement to its operations on an
ongoing basis.



Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures

about Market Risk

Commaodity Prices

The Company manages its exposure to fluctuations in the
price of primary aluminum by selling aluminum at fixed prices
for future delivery and through financial instruments as well as
by purchasing alumina under supply contracts with prices tied
to the same indices as the Company’s aluminum sales con-
tracts. The Company’s risk management activities do not
include trading or speculative transactions. Although the
Company has not materially participated in the purchase of
call or put options, in cases where Century sells forward pri-
mary aluminum, it may purchase call options to benefit from
price increases which are significantly above forward sales
prices. In addition, it may purchase put options to protect itself
from price decreases.

In connection with the sale of its aluminum fabricating busi-
nesses to Pechiney in September 1999, the Company entered
into the Pechiney Metal Agreement, pursuant to which
Pechiney purchases, on a monthiy basis, at least 23.0 million
pounds and no more than 27.0 million pounds of molten alu-
minum produced at the Ravenswood Facility at a price deter-
mined by a market-based formula. Subsequent to the
Company’s purchase of an additional 23% interest in the Mt.
Holly Facility from Xstrata, and effective April 1, 2000, the
Company entered into the Glencore Metal Agreement pursuant
to which it sells to Giencore 110.0 million pounds of primary
aluminum products per year. In connection with the Hawesville
acquisition, the Company entered into a 10-year contract with
Southwire to supply 240 million pounds of high-purity molten
aluminum per year to Southwire’s wire and cable manufactur-
ing facility located adjacent to the Hawesville facility at a price
determined by reference to the U.S. Midwest Market Price.
Under this contract, Southwire will also purchase 60 million
pounds of standard-grade molten aluminum each year for the
first five years of the contract, with an option to purchase an
equal amount in each of the remaining five years. The Company
and Glencore will each be responsible for providing a pro
rata portion of the aluminum supplied to Southwire under

the Southwire Metal Agreement. See Notes 1 and 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Part Il, Item 8.

Apart from the Pechiney Metal Agreement, Glencore Metal
Agreement and Southwire Metal Agreement the Company had
forward delivery contracts to sell 377.1 and 50.3 million pounds
of primary aluminum at December 31, 2001 and December 31,
2000, respectively. Of these forward delivery contracts, 25.5 mil-
lion pounds and 14.7 million pounds at December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2000, respectively, were with the Glencore Group.

The Company was party to a long-term supply agreement to
purchase 936.0 million pounds of alumina annually through the
end of 2001. Beginning January 2, 2002, that agreement was
replaced by new long-term supply agreements with Glencore
that extend through 2006. These agreements provide for a
fixed quantity of alumina at prices determined by a market-
based formula. In addition, as part of its acquisition of an
additional 23% interest in the Mt. Holly Facility, the Company
assumed a supply agreement with Glencore for the alumina
raw material requirements relative to the additional interest.
The unit cost is also determined by a market-based formula.
This alumina supply agreement terminates in 2008. As part of
its Hawesville acquisition, the Company assumed an alumina
supply agreement with Kaiser. That agreement will terminate
in 2005 and is a variable priced market based contract. See
the Kaiser Bankruptcy information at Item 7, “Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations.”

At December 31, 2001, the Company had entered into 248.8
million pounds of fixed priced forward primary aluminum finan-
cial sales contracts primarily with the Glencore Group to miti-
gate the risk of commodity price fluctuations inherent in its
business. These contracts will be settled in cash at various
dates during 2002 and 2003, Additionally, in order to mitigate
the volatility of the natural gas markets, the Company enters
into fixed price forward financial purchase contracts, which
settle in cash in the period corresponding to the intended
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usage of natural gas. At December 31, 2001, the Company had
financial instruments for 3.1 million DTH (one decatherm, or
DTH, is equivalent to one million British Thermal Units or
DTUs). These financial instruments are scheduled for settle-
ment at various dates in 2002 through 2005.

On a hypothetical basis a $0.01 per pound increase or
decrease in the market price of primary aluminum is estimated
to have an unfavorable or favorable impact of $1.6 million after
tax, respectively, on accumulated other comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2001 as a result of the forward
primary aluminum financial sale contracts entered into by the
Company at December 31, 2001.

On a hypothetical basis, a $0.50 per DTH decrease or increase
in the market price of natural gas is estimated to have an
unfavorable or favorable impact of $1.0 million after tax,
respectively, on accumulated other comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2001 as a result of the forward
natural gas financial purchase contracts entered into by the
Company at December 31, 2001.

Effective January 1, 2001, to the extent the Company’s cash
flow hedges are effective, unrealized gains and iosses on
marking forward financial sales contracts to market will be
reported in accumulated other comprehensive income until
settled, rather than in the Statement of Operations.

Century monitors its overall position, and its metals and
natural gas risk management activities are subject to the
management, control and direction of senior management.
These activities are regularly reported to the Board of Directors
of Century.

This quantification of the Company’s exposure to the com-
modity price of aluminum is necessarily limited, as it does
not take into consideration the Company’s inventory or for-
ward delivery contracts, or the offsetting impact upon the
sales price of primary aluminum products. Because all of the
Company’s alumina contracts are indexed to the LME price for
aluminum, beginning in 2002, they act as a natural hedge for
approximately 25% of the Company’s production. Entering the
year 2002, approximately 48% and 55% of the Company’s pro-
duction for the years 2002 and 2003, respectively, was either
hedged by the alumina contracts or by fixed price forward
delivery and financial sales contracts.
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Interest Rates

Interest Rate Risk. The Company’s primary debt obligations
are the outstanding Notes, borrowings under its revolving
credit facility and the industrial revenue bonds the Company
assumed in connection with the Hawesville acquisition.
Because the Notes bear a fixed rate of interest, changes in
interest rates do not subject the Company to changes in
future interest expense with respect to the outstanding notes.
Borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility, if
any, are at variable rates at a margin over LIBOR or the Fleet
National Bank base rate, as defined in the revolving credit
facility. The industrial revenue bonds bear interest at variable
rates determined by reference to the interest rate of similar
instruments in the industrial revenue bond market. At December
31, 2001, the Company had $7.8 million of variable rate
borrowings. A hypothetical 1% increase in the interest rate
would increase the Company’s annual interest expense by $0.1
million, assuming no debt reduction.

The Company’s primary financial instruments are cash and
short-term investments, including cash in bank accounts
and other highly rated liquid money market investments and
government securities.



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Century Aluminum Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Century Aluminum
Company and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principies used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Century Aluminum Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generaily accepted in
the United States of America.

L
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DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 4, 2002
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, trade—net
Due from affiliates

Inventories

Prepaid and other assets

Total current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment—Net
Intangible Asset—Net
Due from Affiliates—Less current portion
Other Assets

Total

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable, trade

Due to affiliates

Industrial revenue bonds

Accrued and other current liabilities

Accrued employee benefits costs—current portion

Total current liabilities

Long Term Debt—Net
Accrued Pension Benefits Costs—Less current portion

Accrued Postretirement Benefits Costs—Less current portion

Other Liabilities
Deferred Taxes

Total noncurrent liabilities
Minority Interest
Contingencies and Commitments (Note 12)

Shareholders’ Equity:
Convertible preferred stock

Common stock (one cent par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized; 20,513,287 and
20,339,203 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively)

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity
Total

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2001

$ 13,388
48,710
19,767
75,217

3,573

160,655
426,008
146,002
8,364
35,679

$ 776,708

$ 42394
2,201
7,815

34,065
7,800

94,275

321,446
4,017
65,627
10,697
39,542
441,329

23,917

25,000

205
168,414
6,752
16,814
217,185

$ 776,706

2000

$ 32,962
31,119
15,672
44,081

9,487

133,321
184,526

15,023
$ 333,770

$ 30,072
3,985

17,739
4,824

56,620

3,656
42,170
6,560
22,125

74,511

203
166,184

36,252
202,639
$ 333,770



Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net Sales:
Third-party customers
Related parties

Cost of Goods Sold

Gross Profit (Loss)
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Gain On Sale Of Fabricating Businesses
Interest Expense

Interest Income

Other Income (Expense)—Net

Net Gain (Loss) On Forward Contracts

Income (Loss) Before income Taxes, Extracrdinary Item and Minority Interest
Income Tax Benefit (Expense)

Income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Item and Minority Interest
Minority Interest—Net of Income Taxes

Net Income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Item
Extraordinary item—Write Off of Deferred Bank Fees,
Net of Income Tax Benefit of $766

Net Income (Loss)
Preferred Dividends

Net income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders

Basic Earnings (Loss} Per Common Share:
Income (Loss) before extraordinary item
Extraordinary item

Net Income (Loss)

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share:
Income (Loss) before extraordinary item
Extraordinary item

Net Income (Loss)

Dividends Per Common Share

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

$ 543,453 $ 299,277 $ 497,475

111,469 129,320 68,801
654,922 428,597 566,276
634,214 396,139 572,921
20,708 32,458 (6,645)
18,598 13,931 18,884
2,110 18,527 (25,529)
- 5,156 41,130
(31,565) (408) (5,205)
891 2,675 1,670
2,592 6,461 (789)
(203) 4,195 (5,368)
(26,175) 36,606 5,909
10,031 (11,301) (628)
(16,144) 25,305 5,281
2,442 - _
(13,702) 25,305 5,281
- - (1,362)
(13,702) 25,305 3,919
(1,500) - -

$ (15202) $ 25305 $ 3,919

$ (074 $ 125 $ 026
- - (0.07)

$ (0.74)  § 1.25 $ 0.19

$ (0749 $ 124 $ 026
- - (0.07)

(0.74) % 1.24 $ 0.19
0.20 0.20 $ 0.20

©“

©“
4
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Convertibie
Comprehensive Preferred

(Dollars in thousands) Income Stock

Balance, December 31, 1998
Net Income
Issuance of Common Stock
Dividends

Balance, December 31, 1999
Net Income
Issuance of Common Stock
Dividends

Balance, December 31, 2000
Comprehensive Income—2001

Net Income (Loss)—2001 $ (13,702)

Other Comprehensive Income:
Net unrealized gain on financial
instruments, net of $7,945 in tax

Net amount reclassified to income,
net of $4,244 in tax

Other comprehensive income

14,498

(7,746)
6,752
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (6,950)
Dividends—

Common, $0.20 per share

Preferred, $3 per share
Issuance of Preferred Stock
Issuance of Common Stock—

Compensation plans

Balance, December 31, 2001

$ 25,000

$ 25,000

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Accumutated
Additional Other

Common Paid-in  Comprehensive

Stock Capital Income
$ 200 $ 161,953
2 2,456

202 164,409

-y

1,775

203 166,184

$ 6,752

2 2,230

$ 205 § 168,414  § 6,752

Retained
Earnings

$ 15,330
3,919

(4,132)

15,117
25,305

(4,170)
36,252

(13,702)

(4,238)
(1,500)

Total
Shareholders'
Equity

$ 177,483
3,919
2,458
(4,132)

179,728
25,305
1,776
(4,170)

202,639

(13,702)

6,752

(4,236)
(1,500)
25,000

2,232

$ 16,814 $ 217,185



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Pension and other post retirement benefits
Workers’ compensation
Inventory market adjustment
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Gain on sale of fabricating businesses
Minority interest
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, trade—net
Due from affiliates
inventories
Prepaids and other assets
Accounts payable, trade
Due to affiliates
Accrued and other current liabilities
Other—net

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase price adjustment related to business acquisitions
Proceeds from sale of fabricating businesses
Business acquisitions
Divestitures
Restricted cash deposits

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Borrowings
Financing fees
Repayment of borrowings
Issuance of preferred stock
Dividends

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31,

2001

$ (13,702)

44,433
(10,148)
7,679
1,311
5,166
919

(3,939}

7,355
5,190
763
4,697
(13,487)
(1,964)
7,528
(3,178)

38,623

(14,456)
54

(466,814)
98,971

(382,245)

321,352
(16,568)

25,000
(6,7386)

324,048

(19,574)
32,962

$ 13,388

2000

$ 25,305

14,395
12,448
797
(1,604)
1,631
(337)
(5,156)

7,380
4,790
3,086
(5,391)
(712)
409
1,621
(559)

58,103

(17,631)
565

(94,734)

5,642
(106,158)

(4,170)
(4,170)

(52,225)
85,187

$ 32,962

1999

$ 3919

18,749
22,022
(16,656)
(150)
1,389

(41,130)

(42,803
(467)
26,843
(9,224)
8,519
(1,518)
(15,944)
2,261

(44,190)

(22,983)

296
245,400

173
222,886

340,708

(430,097)

4,132)
(93,521)

85,175
12

$ 85,187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
(Dollars in Thousands Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Basis of Presentation Century Aluminum
Company (“Century” or the “Company”) is a holding company,
whose principal subsidiaries are Century Aluminum of West
Virginia, Inc. (“Century of West Virginia”) and Century
Kentucky, Inc. (“Century Kentucky”). Century of West Virginia
operates a primary aluminum reduction facility in Ravenswood,
West Virginia (the “Ravenswood facility”), and, through its
wholly owned subsidiary Berkeley Aluminum, Inc. (“Berkeley”),
holds a 49.67% interest in a partnership which operates a pri-
mary aluminum reduction facility in Mt. Holly, South Carolina
{the “Mt. Holly facility”) and a 49.67% undivided interest in the
property, piant, and equipment comprising the Mt. Holly facil-
ity. The remaining interest in the partnership and the remaining
undivided interest in the Mt. Holly facility are owned by Alumax
of South Carolina, Inc., a subsidiary of Alcoa (“ASC”). ASC
manages and operates the Mt. Holly facility pursuant to an
Owners Agreement, prohibiting the disposal of the interest
held by any of the owners without the consent of the other
owners and providing for certain rights of first refusal.
Pursuant to the Owners Agreement, each owner furnishes its
own alumina, or alumina owned by an affiliate, for conversion
to aluminum and is responsible for its pro rata share of the
operating and conversion costs. During 2001, Century com-
pleted the acquisition of NSA Ltd. (“NSA”). NSA owns and
operates an aluminum reduction operation in Hawesville,
Kentucky (the “Hawesville facility”). Century Kentucky effectively
owns an 80% interest in the Hawesville facility through NSA.

Prior to April 1996, the Company was an indirect, wholly owned
subsidiary of Glencore International AG (“Glencore” and,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Glencore Group”). In April
1996, the Company completed an initial public offering of
its common stock. At December 31, 2001, the Glencore Group
owned 38.6% of Century’s common shares outstanding.
During 2001, in connection with the Company’s financing of the
Hawesville acquisition, Glencore purchased 500,000 shares of
the Company’s convertible preferred stock for $25,000. Based
upon its common and preferred stock ownership, the Glencore
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Group beneficially owns 42.5% of Century’s common stock.
Century and the Glencore Group enter into various transac-
tions such as the purchase and sale of primary aluminum,
alumina and metals risk management.

On September 21, 1999, the Company completed the sale to
Pechiney Rolled Products, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (“Pechiney”), of certain assets and the assumption of
certain liabilities of Century of West Virginia’s rolled products
unit at Ravenswood, West Virginia (the “Rolling Business”) and
all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of
Century Cast Piate, Inc. (together the “fabricating businesses”).
The parties consummated the sale pursuant to the Stock and
Asset Purchase Agreement dated July 26, 1999 (the “Purchase
Agreement”} by and among Century, Century of West Virginia
and Pechiney. The aggregate purchase price for the fabricat-
ing businesses was $234,000. The purchase price was deter-
mined by arms-length negotiations between the parties.
Century used a portion of the purchase price to repay all of its
outstanding bank indebtedness.

Effective April 1, 2000, the Company by arms-length negotia-
tions between the parties purchased an additional 23% inter-
est in the Mt. Holly facility for cash consideration of $94,734.
This purchase increased Century’s ownership to 49.67%.

Effective April 1, 2001, Century completed the acquisition
of NSA from Southwire Company, a privately-held wire and
cable manufacturing company. NSA owns and operates the
Hawesville facility. The purchase price was $466,800, plus the
assumption of $7,815 in industrial revenue bonds, and is
subject to adjustments for contingent considerations, see
Footnote 12. Simuitaneous with the closing, a subsidiary of
Glencore effectively purchased a 20% interest in the
Hawesville facility for $99,000 plus the assumption of a pro-
portionate share of the Hawesville facility’s industrial revenue
bonds and post closing payments. The Glencore 20% interest
consists of (1) title to the recently added fifth potline at the
Hawesville facility, (2) a 20% undivided interest in all other
assets of and rights relating to the Hawesville facility, other



than the original four potlines and (3) a 20% ownership in a
limited liability company (the “LLC”) which is responsible for
operating the Hawesville facility and which holds certain intan-
gible and other assets of the Hawesville facility (including the
alumina, power supply and union contracts). In connection
with the Company’s financing of the Hawesville acquisition,
Glencore purchased 500,000 shares of the Company’s con-
vertible preferred stock for $25,000. Each share of convertible
preferred stock entitles the holder to cumulative cash divi-
dends of 8% per annum and may be converted, at the holder’s
option, into the Company’s common stock at $17.92 per share.
See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s historical results of operations included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements may not be
indicative of the results of operations to be expected in the future.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of Century Aluminum Company
and its subsidiaries, after elimination of all significant inter-
company transactions and accounts. Berkeley's interest in
the Mt. Holly partnership is accounted for under the equity
method. There are no material undistributed earnings in the
Mt. Holly partnership.

With respect to NSA, the Company has recorded the property,
plant and equipment that it owns directly (potlines one through
four) on a 100% basis and has recorded its 80% undivided
interest in the remaining property, plant and equipment
(excluding the fifth potline which is owned directly by
Glencore) on a proportionate basis. In each case its interest in
the property, plant and equipment including the related depre-
ciation, is recorded in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue No. 00-01, “Investor Balance Sheet and Income
Statement Display under the Equity Method for Investments in
Certain Partnerships and Other Ventures.” The Company has
consolidated the assets and liabilities and related results of
operations of the LLC and has reflected Glencore’s 20% inter-
est in the LLC as a minority interest.

Revenue Revenue is recognized when title, risk of loss and
ownership passes to customers in accordance with contract
terms. In some instances, the Company invoices customers
prior to physical shipment of goods. In such instances, rev-
enue is recognized only when the customer has specifically
requested such treatment and has made a fixed commitment
to purchase the product. The goods must be complete, ready
for shipment and physically separated from other inventory

with risk of ownership passing to the customer. The Company
must retain no performance obligations and a delivery sched-
ule must be obtained.

Included in net sales during 1999 are tolling fees that the
Company earned from smelting, casting and fabricating mate-
rial supplied by third-party customers. These fees are not related
to primary aluminum shipments and, as such, are not present
in 2000 and 2001 and will not be present in future years due to
the sale of the fabricating businesses to Pechiney. Net sales
include tolling fees of $2,045 for the year ended December 31,
1999. Sales returns and allowances are treated as a reduction
of sales and are provided for based on historical experience
and current estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash eqguivalents are comprised
of cash and short-term investments having maturities of less
than 90 days at the time of purchase. The carrying amount of
cash equivalents approximates fair value.

Accounts Receivable The accounts receivable-trade are net
of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $4,345 and $285
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Inventories Alumina and aluminum inventories are stated at
the lower of cost (using the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method) or
market. The remaining inventories (operating and other sup-
plies) are valued at the lower of average cost or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and eguipment
is stated at cost. Additions, renewals and improvements are
capitalized. Asset and accumulated depreciation accounts are
relieved for dispositions with resulting gains or losses included in
earnings. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation of plant and equipment is provided for by the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

14 to 40 years

5 to 22 years

The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of
long-lived assets to be held and used when events and cir-
cumstances warrant such a review. The carrying value of a
separately identifiable, long-lived asset is considered impaired
when the anticipated undiscounted cash flow from such asset
is less than its carrying value. In that event, a loss is recog-
nized based on the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset. Fair value is
determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows dis-
counted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved.
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Intangible Asset The intangible asset consists of the power
contract acquired in connection with the Hawesville acquisition.
The contract value is being amortized over its term (10 years)
using a method that results in annual amortization equal to the
percentage of a given year’s expected annual benefit to the
total as applied to the total recorded value of the power contract.
For the year ended December 31, 2001, amortization expense
totaled $19,694 and accumulated amortization totaled $19,694.

Other Assets At December 31, 2001 and 2000, other assets
consist primarily of the Company’s investment in the Mt. Holly
partnership, deferred financing costs, and deferred pension
assets. Deferred financing costs are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the life of the related financing.

The Company accounts for its 49.67% interest in the Mt,
Holly partnership using the equity method of accounting.
Additionally, the Company’s 49.67% undivided interest in cer-
tain property, plant and equipment of the Mt. Holly facility is
held outside of the partnership, and while the partnership is
accounted for using the equity method, the undivided interest in
these assets of the facility is accounted for in accordance with
the Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-01, “Investor
Balance Sheet and Income Statement Display under the Equity
Method for Investments in Certain Partnerships and Other
Ventures.” Accordingly, the undivided interest in these assets
of the facility and the related depreciation is being accounted
for on a proportionate gross basis.

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes using
the liability method, whereby deferred income taxes reflect the
net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting pur-
poses and the amounts used for income tax purposes. In eval-
uating the Company’s ability to realize deferred tax assets, the
Company uses judgment in considering the relative impact of
negative and positive evidence. The weight given to the poten-
tial effect of negative and positive evidence is commensurate
with the extent to which it can be objectively verified. Based on
the weight of evidence, both negative and positive, including
the lack of historical earnings, if it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized,
a valuation allowance is established.

Postemployment Benefits The Company provides certain
postemployment benefits to former and inactive employees
and their dependents during the period following employment,
but before retirement. These benefits include salary
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continuance, supplemental unemployment and disability
healthcare. Postemployment benefits are accounted for in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”") No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment
Benefits.” The statement requires recognition of the estimated
future cost of providing postemployment benefits on an
accrual basis over the active service life of the employee.

Forward Delivery Contracts and Financial Instruments The
Company routinely enters into fixed and market priced con-
tracts for the sale of primary aluminum and the purchase of
raw materials in future periods. The Company also enters into
fixed price financial sales contracts to be settled in cash to
manage the Company’s exposure to changing primary alu-
minum prices. These financial sales contracts have been des-
ignated as cash flow hedges as of January 1, 2001. To the
extent such cash flow hedges are effective, unrealized gains
and losses on the financial sales contracts are deferred in the
balance sheet as accumulated other comprehensive income
until the hedged transaction occurs when the realized gain or
loss is recognized as revenue in the Statement of Operations.
Prior to January 1, 2001, a change in market value of a financial
sales contract had been recognized as a gain or loss in the
period of change and recognized in the Statements of
Operations as a gain or loss on forward contracts.

The Company has also entered into financial purchase con-
tracts for natural gas to be settled in cash to manage the
Company’s exposure to changing natural gas prices. These
financial purchase contracts have been designated as cash
flow hedges as of January 1, 2001. To the extent such cash
flow hedges are effective, unrealized gains and losses on the
natural gas financial purchase contracts are deferred in the
balance sheet as accumulated other comprehensive income
until the hedged transaction occurs. Once the hedged trans-
action occurs, the realized gain or loss is recognized in cost of
goods sold in the Statement of Operations. If future natural
gas needs are revised lower than initially anticipated, the
futures contracts associated with the reduction no longer qual-
ify for deferral and are marked to market. Mark-to-market
gains and losses are recorded in net gain (loss) on forward
contracts in the period delivery is no longer deemed probable.

The effectiveness of the Company’s hedges is measured by an
historical and probable future high correlation of changes in
the fair value of the hedging instruments with changes in value
of the hedged item. If high correlation ceases to exist, then



gains or losses will be recorded in net gain (loss) on forward
contracts. To date, high correlation has always been achieved.
As of December 31, 2001, the Company had a net deferred
gain of $10,453 on its hedges.

Financial Instruments The Company’s financial instruments
(principally receivables, payables, debt and forward financial
contracts) are carried at amounts that approximate fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risk Financial instruments, in addi-
tion to forward financial contracts, which potentially expose
the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist princi-
pally of cash investments and trade receivables. The Company
places its cash investments with highly rated financial institu-
tions. At times, such investments may be in excess of the FDIC
insurance limit. With the sale of the fabricating businesses
to Pechiney, the Company significantly reduced its customer
base and thereby increased its concentrations of credit risk
with respect to trade receivables. The Company routinely
assesses the financial strength of its customers, but generally
does not require collateral to support trade receivables.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the report-
ing period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation The Company has elected not to
adopt the recognition provisions for employee stock-based
compensation as permitted in SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation.” As such, the Company accounts
for stock based compensation in accordance with APB No. 25
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”

New Accounting Standards Effective January 1, 2001, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 138,
which establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities. All
derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or
not, are required to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair
value. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the
effective portions of the changes in the fair value of the

derivative are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income and are recognized in the income statement when
the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of the
changes in the fair value of the cash flow hedges are recog-
nized in earnings. Effectiveness of hedges is measured by an
historical and probable future high correlation of changes in
the fair value of the hedging instrument with the changes in the
fair value of the hedged item. If the correlation ceases to exist,
hedge accounting will be terminated and gains and losses on
forward financial sales contracts will be recorded as net gains
(losses) on forward contracts in the Statement of Operations.

As of January 1, 2001, the Company’s financial sales and
purchase instruments were designated as cash flow hedges.
There was no transition adjustment upon adoption. As of

‘December 31, 2001, assets included $15,211, and accrued and

other liabilities included $4,758, representing the fair value
of the Company’s financial sales and purchase instruments.
Based on the fair value of the Company’s financial sales and
purchase instruments as of December 31, 2001, accumulated
other comprehensive income of $2,048 is expected to be
reclassified to earnings over the next twelve month period.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) con-
tinues to identify and provide guidance on various implemen-
tation issues related to SFAS No’s. 133 and 138 that are in
varying stages of review and clearance by the FASB. The
Company has adopted all FASB guidance that was required to
be implemented by December 31, 2001. The Company is cur-
rently evaluating the impact of pending FASB guidance and
has not determined if the ultimate resolution of those issues
would have a material impact on its financial statements.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, "Business
Combinations.” SFAS No. 141 requires the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001 and eliminates the pooling-of-interests method. The
Company is evaluating the cumulative effect and ongoing
impact of SFAS No. 141 on its financial position and results of
operations. There have been no business acquisitions since
the effective date of SFAS No. 141.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” which became effective January 1,
2002. SFAS No. 142 requires, among other things, the discon-
tinuance of goodwill amortization. In addition, SFAS No. 142
includes provisions for the reclassification of certain existing
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recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the use-
ful lives of existing recognized intangibles, reclassification of
certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill and the
identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing
potential future impairments of goodwill. SFAS No. 142 also
requires the Company to complete a transitional goodwill
impairment test six months from the date of adoption. The
Company is evaluating the cumulative effect and ongoing
impact of SFAS No. 142 on its financial position and results
of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement establishes
standards for accounting for obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated
asset retirement costs. The standard is required to be adopted
by the Company beginning January 1, 2003. The Company is
currently assessing, but has not yet determined, the impact of
SFAS No. 143 on its financial position and results of operations.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets.” This state-
ment addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment and disposal of long-lived assets. The standard
became effective January 1, 2002. The Company is developing
a plan to apply the provisions of this statement to its opera-
tions on an ongoeing basis.

Note 2. Acquisitions and Dispositions

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company completed the acquisition
of NSA, an entity that operates a 523-million-pounds-per-year
aluminum reduction operation in Hawesville, Kentucky. The
purchase price was $466,800 plus the assumption of $7,815 in
industrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) and is subject to adjust-
ments for contingent considerations, see Footnote 12. See
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
details relating to the Hawesville acquisition. The Company
financed the Hawesville acquisition with: (i) proceeds from the
sale of its Exchange Notes, see Note 5, (ii) proceeds from the
sale of its Preferred Stock to Glencore, (iii} proceeds from the
sale to Glencore of a 20% interest in the Hawesville facility, and
(iv) available cash. The Glencore 20% interest consists of (1)
title to the recently added fifth potline at the Hawesville facil-
ity, (2) a 20% undivided interest in all other assets of and rights
relating to the Hawesville facility, other than the original four
potlines and (3) a 20% ownership in the LLC which holds cer-
tain intangible and other assets of the Hawesville facility (the
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alumina, power supply, union contracts and obligations under
the IRBs). Pursuant to the Owners’ Agreement governing the
Hawesville facility, Glencore is responsible for reimbursing the
LLC for its 20% share of operating costs, has a first right of
refusal if the Company seeks to sell its 80% interest in the
Hawesville facility and has certain rights regarding approval
of significant matters affecting the Hawesville facility. The
Company accounted for the Hawesville acquisition using
the purchase method of accounting. See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
about the financing of the Hawesville acquisition.

Effective April 1, 2000, Century, through its wholly owned
indirect subsidiary Berkeley, increased its 26.67% undivided
interest in the property, plant and equipment comprising the
Mt. Holly facility to 49.67% by purchasing a 23% undivided
interest from a subsidiary of Xstrata AG, (“Xstrata”) a publicly
traded Swiss company. As part of the purchase, Berkeley also
acquired Xstrata’s 23% interest in the general partnership
which operates and maintains the Mt. Holly facility (the
“Operating Partnership,” and together with the Mt. Holly facil-
ity, the “Mt. Holly Assets”). Prior to Berkeley’s purchase from
Xstrata, it held a 26.67% interest in the Operating Partnership.
Glencore is a major shareholder of Xstrata. The purchase was
completed pursuant to an asset purchase agreement dated as
of March 31, 2000 (the “Mt. Holly Purchase Agreement”) by and
between Berkeley and Xstrata. The aggregate purchase price
for Xstrata’s interest in Mt. Holly Assets was $94,734. Under
the terms of the Mt. Holly Purchase Agreement, Berkeley also
agreed to assume certain of Xstrata’s obligations and liabilities
relating to the Mt. Holly assets. Concurrent with the acquisi-
tion, the Company entered into a 10 year contract to sell
to Glencore approximately 110 million pounds of primary alu-
minum produced at the Mt. Holly facility. During 2001, the price
was variable and determined by reference to the LME market
price for primary aluminum, while the remaining eight years of
the contract will be at a fixed price. The terms of the Mt. Holly
Purchase Agreement were determined through arms-length
negotiations between the parties. The Company used available
cash to complete the purchase and the acquisition was
accounted for using the purchase method.

The following schedule represents the unaudited pro forma
results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000 assuming the acquisitions occurred on January 1,
2000. The unaudited pro forma amounts may not be indicative
of the results that actually would have occurred if the



transactions described above had been completed and in
effect for the periods indicated or the results that may be
obtained in the future.

{unaudited) 2001 2000

Net sales $740,846 $773,981

Net income (loss) (14,427) 22,056
Net income (loss) available to
common shareholders (16,427) 20,056

Earnings (loss) per common share (Basic) (0.80) 0.99
Earnings (loss) per common share (Diluted) $ (0.80) $ 0.98

Note 3. Inventories

Inventories, at December 31, consist of the following:

2001 2000
Raw materials $ 36,686 $ 27,784
Work-in-process 11,911 3,286
Finished goods 11,219 3,859
Operating and other supplies 15,401 9,152

$ 75,217 $ 44,081

At December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, approximately
79% of inventories were valued at the lower of last-in, first-out
(“LIFO™) cost or market. The excess of first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
cost over LIFO cost (or market, if lower) of inventory was
approximately $3,374 at December 31, 2001 and approximately
$490 at December 31, 2000. Inventory at December 31, 2001
and 2000 has been adjusted to estimated net realizable value
or market. Results of operations include net charges of $5,166
and $1,631 for inventory adjustments for the pericds ended
December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively. Cost of
goods sold has been reduced by $1,759 for alumina sales to
Glencore during 2000.

Note 4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, at December 31, consist of
the following:

2001 2000

Land and improvements $ 12,786 $ 11,935
Buildings and improvements 37,979 28,180
Machinery and equipment 503,566 236,146
Construction in progress 8,006 20,942
562,337 297,203

Less accumulated depreciation (136,331) (112,677)

$426,006 $184,526

For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
Company recorded depreciation expense of $24,739 and
$14,395, respectively.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the cost of property, plant
and equipment includes $136,877 and $136,349, respectively,
and accumulated depreciation includes $35,397 and $28,376,
respectively, representing the Company’s undivided interest in
the property, plant and equipment comprising the Mt. Holly facility.

At December 31, 2001, the cost of property, plant and equipment
includes $256,915 and accumulated depreciation includes
$12,629, representing the Company’s interest in the property,
plant and equipment comprising the Hawesville facility.

The Company has various operating lease commitments through
2005 relating to machinery and equipment. Expenses under
all operating leases were $297, $310 and $1,077 for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
There were no noncancelable operating leases as of December
31, 2001.

Note 5. Debt

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company entered into a $100,000
senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit
facility”) with a syndicate of banks. The Revolving Credit
facility may be used for working capital needs, capital expen-
ditures and other general corporate purposes. Borrowings under
the Revolving Credit facility are subject to a $30,000 reserve
and limited to a borrowing base based upon certain eligible
inventory and receivables. The Company is subject to custom-
ary covenants, including restrictions on capital expenditures,
additional indebtedness, liens, guarantees, mergers and
acquisitions, dividends, distributions, capital redemptions and -
investments. The Company’s obligations under the Revolving
Credit facility are unconditionally guaranteed by its domestic
subsidiaries (other than the LLC) and secured by a first priority
security interest in all accounts receivable and inventory
belonging to the Company and its subsidiary borrowers.
Amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit facility bear
interest, at the Company’s option, at either a floating LIBOR
rate or Fleet National Bank's base rate, in each case plus
an applicable interest margin. The applicable interest margin
ranges from 2.25% to 3.0% over the LIBOR rate and 0.75% to
1.5% over the base rate and is determined by certain financial
measurements of the Company. The Revolving Credit facility
will mature on April 2, 2006. There were no outstanding borrow-
ings under the Revolving Credit facility as of December 31, 2001.
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Effective April 1, 2001, in connection with its acquisition of the
Hawesville facility, the Company issued and sold $325,000 of
its 11 3/4% senior secured first mortgage notes due 2008 (the
“Notes”) to certain institutional investors in a private place-
ment under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. Payment
obligations under the Notes are unconditionally guaranteed by
all of the Company’s material wholly owned direct and indirect
subsidiaries (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”) and secured by
mortgages and security interests granted by two of the
Company'’s subsidiaries in all of their respective interests in the
real property, plant and equipment comprising the Hawesville
and Ravenswood facilities. At December 31, 2001, the Company
had unamortized bond discounts on the Notes of $3,554. The
indenture governing the notes contains customary covenants
including limiting the Company’s ability to pay dividends,
incur debt, make investments, sell assets or stock of certain
subsidiaries, and purchase or redeem capital stock. If the
Company does not generate sufficient cumulative earnings, as
defined in the Company’s {oan agreements, it would be required
to suspend dividend distributions on or before 2003. As of
December 31, 2001, $8.2 million of retained earnings was avail-
able for payment of dividends. The Note guarantees will rank
equally in right of payment to the other senior indebtedness of
the guarantors and senior in right of payment to all subordi-
nated indebtedness of the guarantors.

In November 2001, the Company exchanged the Notes for a
like principal amount of 11 3/4% senior secured first mortgage
notes due 2008 (the “Exchange Notes”), which are registered
under the Securities Act of 1933. The terms of the Exchange

Notes are substantially simifar to the Notes, except the Exchange

Notes do not have the transfer restrictions and registration
rights relating to the Notes. The Exchange Notes will not be
listed on any securities exchange or included in any auto-
mated quotation system.

Effective April 1, 2001, in connection with its acquisition of the
Hawesville facility, the Company assumed Industrial Revenue
Bonds (IRB) in the aggregate principal amount of $7,815.
Glencore has assumed a pro rata portion of that debt and will
pay a pro rata portion of service costs of the IRBs through its
investment in the Hawesville facility. The IRBs mature on April 1,
2028, are secured by a Glencore letter of credit and bear inter-
est at a variable rate not to exceed 12% per annum determined
weekly based on prevailing rates for similar bonds in the bond
market. The interest rate on the IRBs at December 31, 2001 was
2.05%. Interest is paid quarterly. The IRBs are classified as
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current liabilities because they are remarketed weekly and
could be required to be repaid upon demand if there is a failed
remarketing, as provided in the indenture governing the IRBs.

During the year ended December 31, 1999, the Company
recorded an extraordinary item of $1,362 related to the write-
off of deferred bank fees.

Note 6. Composition of Certain Balance Sheet Accounts

(at December 31) 2001 2000

Accrued and Other Current Liabilities

Income taxes $ 7,245 $ 6,621
Accrued bond interest 8,168 -
Salaries, wages and benefits 8,977 4,453
Stock compensation 539 1,947
Other 9,136 4,718

) $ 34,065 $ 17,739

Accrued Employee Benefit Costs—

Current Portion

Postretirement benefits $ 2871 $ 2,100

Employee benefits cost 4,929 2,724
$ 7,800 $ 4,824

Other Liabilities

Workers’ compensation $ 7162 $ 6,191
Other 3,535 369
$ 10697 $ 6.560

Century of West Virginia and Century of Kentucky are self-
insured for workers’ compensation, except that Gentury of
West Virginia has certain catastrophic coverage that is pro-
vided under State of West Virginia insurance programs. The
liability for self-insured workers’ compensation claims has
been discounted at 6% at December 31, 2001 and 2000. The
components of the liability for workers’ compensation at
December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000

Undiscounted liability $ 13,398 $ 11,466
Less discount 3,871 3,249
$ 9527 $ 8217

Note 7. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Pension Benefits The Company maintains noncontributory
defined benefit pension plans for its Ravenswood facility and
substantially all of the Company’s salaried employees. For
salaried employees, plan benefits are based primarily on years
of service and average compensation during the later years of
employment. For hourly employees at the Ravenswood facility,
plan benefits are based primarily on a formula that provides a



specific benefit for each year of service. The Company’s fund-
ing policy is to contribute annually an amount based upon
actuarial and economic assumptions designed to achieve
adequate funding of the projected benefit obligations and to
meet the minimum funding requirements of ERISA. Plan assets
consist principally of U.S. equity securities, growth funds and
fixed income accounts. As explained in Note 12, the Company
agreed to make additional contributicns to the hourly plan
for the Ravenswood facility in connection with the initial pub-
lic offering of the Company’s common stock. In addition, the
Company provides supplemental executive retirement benefits
(“SERB”) for its executive officers.

The hourly employees at the Hawesville facility are part of a
USWA sponsored multi-employer plan. The Company's contri-
butions to the plan are determined at a fixed rate per hour worked.

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Acquisition of businesses

Plan changes

(Gains) losses

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of assets at end of year

Funded status of plans

Funded status

Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss)
Unrecognized transition obligation
Unrecognized prior service cost
Net liability (asset) recognized

The hourly pension plan for the employees of the
Ravenswood facility had an aggregate benefit obligation of
$30,867 and $31,366 and an aggregate fair value of plan
assets of $33,495 and $34,430 at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The salaried pension plan and SERB had an

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company contributed
$771 to the plan, and had no outstanding liability at year-end.

Other Postretirement Benefits (OPEB) In addition to providing
pension benefits, the Company provides certain healthcare and
life insurance benefits for substantially all retired employees.
The Company accounts for these plans in accordance with
SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions.” SFAS No. 106 requires the Company to
accrue the estimated cost of providing postretirement benefits
during the working careers of those employees who could
become eligible for such benefits when they retire. The Company
funds these benefits as the retirees submit claims.

The change in benefit obligations and change in plan assets as
of December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000
Pension OPEB Pension OPEB
$ 42,100 $ 52,645 $ 36,483 $ 41,146
2,501 2,879 1,212 1,697
3,149 5,237 2,719 3,658
- 18,562 - -
3,767 - 2,015 (1,978)
(1,194) 7,250 1,956 10,665
(2,679) (2,798) (2,285) (2,543)
$ 47,644 $ 83,775 $ 42,100 $ 52,645
$ 39,822 $ - $ 40,724 $ -
(1,519) - (1,005) -
4,254 2,798 2,388 2,543
(2,679) (2,798) (2,285) (2,543)
$ 39,878 $ - $ 39,822 $ -
$ 7,766 $ 83,775 $ 2278 $ 52,645
(2,644) (17,014) 1,409 (10,450
(581) - (755) -
(7,601) 1,737 (4,951) 2,075
$ (3,080) $ 68,498 $ (2,019 $ 44,270

aggregate benefit obligation of $16,777 and $10,734 and an
aggregate fair value of plan assets of $6,383 and $5,392 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. There are no plan
assets in the SERB due to the nature of the plan.
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Net periodic benefit costs were comprised of the following elements:

Pension

Service cost $ 2,501
Interest cost 3,149
Expected return on plan assets

Net amortization and deferral 1,226
Net periodic cost $ 3,213

The following assumptions were used in the actuarial compu-
tations at December 31:

2001 2000 1999
Discount rate 7.25% 7.25% 7.50%
Rate of increase in future
compensation levels:
Hourly pension plan 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Salaried pension plan 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Long term rate of return
on pension plan assets 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

For measurement purposes, a 6.00% annual rate increase in
the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was
assumed for each year. The rates were assumed to remain at
6.00% for 2002 and thereafter.

A one-percentage-point increase in the assumed rate of inflation in
future medical costs would increase the postretirement bene-
fit obligation at December 31, 2001 by $13.1 million and would
increase aggregate 2001 service and interest cost by $1.7 mil-
lion. A one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed rate of
inflation in future medical costs would decrease the postretire-
ment benefit obligation at December 31, 2001 by $10.4 million
and would decrease aggregate 2001 service and interest cost
by $1.3 million.

The Company sponsors a tax-deferred savings plan under
which eligible employees may elect to contribute specified
percentages of their compensation with the Company provid-
ing matching contributions of 60% of the first 6% of a partici-
pant’s annual compensation contributed to the savings plan.
One-half of the Company’s contribution is invested in the com-
mon stock of Century and one-half of the Company’s contri-
bution is in cash. Company contributions to the savings plan
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(3,663)

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1989

OPEB Pension OPEB Pension OPEB

$ 2,879 $ 1,212 $ 1,697 $ 2,625 $ 2,956
5,237 2,719 3,658 8,005 8,160

- (3,601) - (10,323) -

339 416 207 1,010 732

$ 8455 $ 746 $ 5562 $ 1,317 $ 11,848
were $484, $241 and $585 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Shares of common stock of
the Company may be sold at any time. Employees are consid-
ered fully vested in the plan upon completion of two years of
service. A year of service is defined as a plan year in which the

employee works at least 1,000 hours.

Note 8. Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock Under the Company’s Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, the Board of Directors is authorized to issue up
to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with a par value of one
cent per share, in one or more series. The authorized but unis-
sued preferred shares may be issued with such dividend rates,
conversion privileges, voting rights, redemption prices and liqui-
dation preferences as the Board of Directors may determine,
without action by shareholders.

On April 2, 2001, the Company issued to Glencore 500,000
shares of its 8.0% cumulative convertible preferred stock (the
“Preferred Stock”) for a cash purchase price of $25,000. The
Preferred Stock has a par value per share of $0.01, a liquida-
tion preference of $50 per share and ranks junior to the
Exchange Notes, the IRBs, borrowings under the Revolving
Credit facility and all of the Company’s other existing and
future debt obligations. Following is a summary of the princi-
pal terms of the Preferred Stock:

Dividends The holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to
receive fully cumulative cash dividends at the rate of 8% per
annum per share accruing daily and payable when declared
guarterly in arrears.

Optional Conversion Each share of Preferred Stock may be
converted at any time, at the option of the holder, into shares
of the Company’s common stock, at a price of $17.92, subject



to adjustment for stock dividends, stock splits and other
specified corporate actions.

Voting Rights The holders of Preferred Stock have limited vot-
ing rights to approve: (1) any action by the Company which
would adversely affect or alter the preferences and special
rights of the Preferred Stock, (2) the authorization of any class
of stock ranking senior to, prior to or ranking equally with the
Preferred Stock, and (3) any reorganization or reclassification
of the Company’s capital stock or merger or consolidation of
the Company.

Optional Redemption After the third anniversary of the issue
date, the Company may redeem the Preferred Stock, at its
option, for cash at a price of $52 per share, plus accrued and
unpaid dividends to the date of redemption, declining ratably
to $50 per share at the end of the eighth year.

Transferability The Preferred Stock is freely transferable in a
private offering or any other transaction which is exempt from,
or not subject to, the registration requirements of the
Securities Act of 1933 and any applicable state securities laws.

Note 9. Stock Based Compensation

1996 Stock Incentive Plan The Company adopted the 1996
Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan”) for the pur-
pose of awarding performance share units and granting quali-
fied incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to
salaried officers and other key employees of the Company. The
Stock Incentive Plan has a term of 10 years from its effective
date. The number of shares available under the Stock Incentive
Plan is 2,000,000. Granted stock options vest one-third on the
grant date and an additional one-third on each of the first and
second anniversary dates, and have a term of 10 years.

The Company awarded 460,000 service-based performance
share units at the time of the initial public offering and 60,500
units during 2000, for no consideration. In addition, 20,182 per-
formance-based shares were awarded in 2001. The service-
based performance share units represent the right to receive
common stock, on a one-for-one basis on their vesting dates.
The value of the service-based performance share units is $13
per share for the initial award, $13.92 per share, and $12.86 per
share for the units awarded in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
value of the 460,000 units granted in 1996 was charged to com-
pensation expense over their 5-year vesting period, which was
one-third at the end of each of the third, fourth and fifth anniver-
sary dates. The value of the 60,500 units granted in 2000 is

being charged to compensation expense over their 3-year
vesting period which is one-third at January 1, 2001, 2002 and
2003, respectively. The value of the 20,182 units granted in 2001
was charged to compensation expense in 2001. During 2001,
the final one-third (156,836) of the service-based performance
shares became vested and were converted to Common Stock.

The Stock incentive Plan, as presently administered, provides
for additional grants upon the passage of time or the attain-
ment of certain established performance goals. As of December
31, 2001, approximately 273,000 performance share units have
been authorized and will vest upon the attainment of the per-
formance goals.

The Company recognized $519, $988 and $1,623 of expense
related to the Stock Incentive Plan in 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. The service based performance share units do
not affect the issued and outstanding shares of common stock
until conversion at the end of the vesting periods. However,
the service based performance share units are considered
common stock equivalents and therefore are included, using
the treasury stock method, in average common shares out-
standing for diluted earnings per share computations. Goal
based performance share units are not considered common
stock equivalents until it becomes probable that performance
goals will be obtained.

The Company applies APB Opinion 25 and related interpre-
tations in accounting for the 1896 Stock Incentive Plan.
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for
the stock option portions of the plan. Had compensation cost
for the Stock Incentive Plan been determined based on the fair
value at the grant dates for awards under the plan consistent
with the method of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income
and earnings per share would have changed to the pro forma
amounts indicated below:

2001 2000 1989

Net Income (loss)

As Reported $ (15,202) $ 25,305 $ 3,919

Pro Forma $ (15,291) $ 25,115 $ 4,074
Basic earnings (loss) per share

As Reported $ (0749 $ 125 $ 019

Pro Forma $ (075 $ 124 $ 0.20
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

As Reported $ (074 $ 124 $ 0.19

Pro Forma $ (075 $ 1.23 $ 0.20
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Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan The Company
adopted a non-employee directors stock option plan for the
purpose of granting non-qualified stock options to non-
employee directors. The number of shares available under this
plan is 200,000, of which options for 115,000 shares have been
awarded. The initial options vest one-third on the grant date
and an additional one-third on each of the first and second
anniversary dates. Subsequent options vest one-fourth each

Options Shares
Outstanding at beginning of year 603,600
Granted : 34,500
Exercised (35,333)
Forfeited (7,500)
Outstanding at end of year 595,267

calendar quarter. Each option granted under this plan will be
exercisable for a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

A summary of the status of the Company’s Stock Incentive
Plan and the Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan as of
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 and changes during the
year ended on those dates is presented below:

The following table summarizes information about stock options -outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Range of exercise prices

$14.50 to $16.72
$11.50 to $14.49
$ 7.03to0 $11.49

2001 2000 1999

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Price . Shares Price Shares Price

$ 12.77 530,200 $ 13.19 609,900 $ 13.15

13.60 73,400 10.45 23,500 9.26

12.55 - - (333) 8.63

13.78 - - (102,867) 12.58

$ 12.82 603,600 $12.77 530,200 $ 13.19
Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted
Number Average Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average

at 12/31/01  Contractual Life Exercise Price at 12/31/01 Exercise Price

62,000 6.4 years $ 15.66 51,000 $ 15.73
474,300 4.8 years $ 13.02 457,968 $ 13.01
58,967 8.6 years $ 821 31,501 $ 848

The following table provides summarized information for securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans.

to be issued upon

Plan category

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

outstanding options

Number of shares Weighted‘ Restricted Number of shares remaining
Average Shares— available for future issuance

exercise of Exercise Performance under equity compensation plans,

Price Shares excluding outstanding options

595,267 $12.82 272,840 780,338
595,267 $12.82 272,840 780,338

Total
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The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in
2001, 2000 and 1999:

2001 2000 1999

Weighted average fair value

per option granted

during the year $ 4.04 $ 4.05 $ 2.77
Dividends per quarter $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05
Risk-free interest rate 4.55% 6.47% 5.54%
Expected volatility 30% 30% 30%
Expected lives (in years) 5 5 5

Note 10. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings per common share (EPS) amounts are com-
puted by dividing earnings after the deduction of preferred
stock dividends by the average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted EPS amounts assume the issuance of
common stock for ali potentially dilutive equivalents outstand-
ing. Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for income
(loss) available to common shareholders for the years ended
December 31, 2001, are as follows (shares in thousands):

2001 2000 1999

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Numerator:
Net income (loss) available to
common shareholders
Denominator:
Average common shares
outstanding
Basic earnings {loss) per share  $

$(15202) $ 25305 $ 3,919

20,473
0.74) $

20,308
125 $

20,202
0.19
Diluted earnings {loss) per share:
Numerator: .
Net income (loss) available to
commen shareholders
Denominator:
Average common shares
outstanding
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and ,
performance awards - 170 155
Common shares outstanding,

$(15,202) $ 25305 $ 3919

20,473 20,308 20,202

assuming dilution 20,473 20,478 20,357
Diluted earnings (loss)
per share $ (074 $ 124 $ 019

There were 595 thousand and 536 thousand shares of common
stock issuable under the Company’s stock option plan that
were excluded in 2001 and 2000, respectively, from the com-
putation of dilutive EPS because of their antidilutive effect. In
addition, convertible preferred stock, convertible at the
holder’s option into Company common stock at $17.92 per
share was not irffcluded in the computation of dilutive EPS
because of their antidilutive effect.

Note 11. Income Taxes

. Significant components of the income tax expense from con-

tinuing operations consist of the following:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Federal:

Current benefit (expense) $ (107) $ 656 $ 18,850

Deferred (expense) benefit 8,840 {(10,101) (19,183)
State:

Current benefit (expense) (10 491 2,544

Deferred (expense) benefit 1,308 (2,347) (2,839)

Tota! income tax

benefit (expense) $ 10,031 $(11,301) $

(628)

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999 include reductions in estimated income taxes
payable of $0, $2,400 and $1,500, respectively.

A recongciliation of the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate to
the effective income tax rate on income (loss) from continuing
operations is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Federal statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
Effect of:
Permanent differences - 1 2)
State taxes, net of
Federal benefit 3 3 3
Other ) - (8) (25)
38% 31% 11%

Permanent differences primarily relate to the Company’s meal
and entertainment disallowance and other nondeductible expenses.
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets
and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000

Federal
Deferred federal tax assets:

Accrued postretirement benefit cost $ 8273 % 1,035

Accrued liabilities 4,133 5,196
Federal NOL carried forward 26,796 -
Inventory writedown 3,832 -
General business credit 165 165
Deferred federal tax assets 43,199 6,396
Deferred federal tax liabilities:
Tax over financial statement depreciation (69,572) (23,018)
Equity contra—other
comprehensive income 3,412 -
Inventory basis (4,866) -
Net deferred federal tax liability (34,651) (16,622)
State
Deferred state tax assets:
Accrued postretirement benefit cost 1,182 148
Accrued liabilities 290 680
Inventory writedown 547 -
State NOL carried forward 2,133 1,222
Deferred state tax assets 4,152 2,050
Deferred state tax liabilities:
Tax over financial statement depreciation (9,938) (3,288)
Equity contra—other
comprehensive income (289) -
Inventory basis (695) -
Net deferred state tax (liability) asset (6,770) (1,238)
Net deferred tax liability $ (41,421) $ (17,860)

Of the $41,421 net deferred tax liability at December 31, 2001,
$1,879 is included in current liabilities. Of the $17,860 net
deferred tax liability at December 31, 2000, $4,265 is included
in current assets. At December 31, 2001, the Company has a
$77.0 million federal net operating loss carryforward that
expires in 2022. Additionally, the Company has various state
net operating loss carryforwards totaling $42.0 million which
begin to expire in 2010.

Note 12. Contingencies and Commitments

Environmental Contingencies The Company spends signifi-
cant amounts to cdmply with environmental laws and to
assure compliance with known and anticipated requirements.
The Company believes it does not have environmental liabili-
ties that are likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Company. However, there can be no assurance that future
requirements at currently or fbrmerly owned properties will not
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resuilt in liabilities which may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Century of West Virginia is performing certain remedial mea-
sures at its Ravenswood facility pursuant to a RCRA 3008(h)
order issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”)
in 1994 (the “3008(h) Order”). Century of West Virginia also con-
ducted a RCRA facility investigation (“RFI”) evaluating other
areas at Ravenswood that may have contamination requiring
remediation. The RFI was submitted to the EPA in December 1999.
Century of West Virginia, in consultation with the EPA, is carry-
ing out interim remediation measures at two sites identified in
the RFI. The Company expects that it will complete work on
these two sites by the end of 2002 and that the EPA will not
require further work as a result of the RFI. The Company
believes a significant portion of the contamination on the
two identified sites is attributable to the operations of a prior
owner and will be the financial responsibility of that owner, as
discussed below.

Kaiser owned and operated the Ravenswood facility for
approximately 30 years before the Company purchased it.
Many of the conditions that Century of West Virginia is reme-
dying exist because of activities that occurred during Kaiser’s
ownership and operation. Under the terms of the Company’s
agreement to purchase the Ravenswood facility (“Kaiser
Purchase Agreement”), Kaiser retained the responsibility to
pay the costs of cleanup of those conditions. In addition,
Kaiser retained title to certain land within the Ravenswood
premises and is responsible for those areas. On February 12,
2002, Kaiser and certain wholly owned subsidiaries filed volun-
tary petitions under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code
(“Kaiser Bankruptcy”). While the Company believes the Kaiser
Bankruptcy will not relieve Kaiser of its obligations to do
remediation work under government orders, the ultimate out-
come of the Kaiser Bankruptcy is uncertain. Nevertheless, the
Company does not expect the Kaiser Bankruptcy to have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition,
results of operations or liquidity.

Under the terms of the Company’s agreement to sell its fabri-
cating businesses to Pechiney (the “Pechiney Agreement”),
the Company and Century of West Virginia provided Pechiney
with certain indemnifications. Those include the assignment
of certain of Century of West Virginia’s indemnification rights
under the Kaiser Purchase Agreement (with respect to the
real property transferred to Pechiney) and the Company’s



indemnification rights under its stock purchase agreement with
Alcoa relating to the Company’s purchase of Century Cast
Plate, inc. The Pechiney Agreement provides further indemni-
fications, which are limited, in general, to pre-closing condi-
tions that were not disclosed to Pechiney and to off-site
migration of hazardous substances from pre-closing acts or
omissions of Century of West Virginia. Environmental indemni-

fications under the Pechiney Agreement expire September 20,

2005 and are payable only to the extent they exceed $2,000.

The Hawesville facility has been listed on the National
Priorities List under the federal Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act. On July 6, 2000,
the EPA issued a final Record of Decision (“ROD") which
details response actions to be implemented at several loca-
tions at the Hawesville site to address actual or threatened
releases of hazardous substances. Those actions include:

» removal and off-site disposal at approved landfills of certain
soils contaminated by polychlorinated biphenyls (“PCBs”);

* management and containment of soils and sediments with
low PCB contamination in certain areas on-site; and

* the continued extraction and treatment of cyanide contami-
nated ground water using the existing ground water
treatment system.

The total costs for the remedial actions to be undertaken and
paid for by Southwire relative to this site are estimated under
the ROD to be $12,600 and the forecast of annual operating
and maintenance costs is $1,200. Under the Company’s agree-
ment with Southwire to purchase NSA, Southwire indemnified
the Company against all on-site environmental liabilities
known to exist prior to the closing of the acquisition, including
all remediation, operation and maintenance obligations under
the ROD. On behalf of Southwire, Century will operate and
maintain the ground water treatment system required under
the ROD. Southwire will reimburse Century for any such
expense that exceeds $400 annually. Under the terms of the
Company’s agreements with Glencore relating to the
Company’s ownership and operation of the Hawesville facility,
Glencore will share pro rata in any environmental costs (net of
any amounts available under the indemnity provisions in the
Company’s stock purchase agreement with Southwire) associ-
ated with the Hawesville facility.

If on-site environmental liabilities relating to NSA’s pre-closing
activities that were not known to exist as of the date of the

closing of the acquisition become known within six years after
the closing, the Company and Glencore, based on each com-
pany's respective percentage interests in the Hawesville facil-
ity, will share the costs of remedial action with Southwire on a
sliding scale depending on the year the claim is brought. Any
on-site environmental liabilities arising from pre-closing activi-
ties which do not become known until on or after the sixth
anniversary of the closing of the Hawesville acquisition will be
the responsibility of Glencore and the Company. In addition,
the Company and Glencore will be responsible for a pro rata
portion of any post-closing environmental costs which result
from a change in environmental laws after the closing or from
their own activities, including a change in the use of the facility.

The Company acquired NSA by purchasing all of the out-
standing equity securities of its parent company, Metalsco,
which was a wholly owned subsidiary of Southwire. Metalsco
previously owned certain assets which are unrelated to NSA,
including the stock of Gaston Copper Recycling Corporation
(“Gaston”), a secondary metals reduction facility in South
Carolina. Gaston has numerous liabilities related to environ-
mental conditions at its reduction facility. Gaston and all other
non-NSA assets owned at any time by Metalsco were identi-
fied in the Company’s agreement with Southwire as unwanted
property and were distributed to Southwire prior to the closing
of the Hawesville acquisition. Southwire indemnified the
Company for all liabilities related to the unwanted property.
Southwire also retained ownership of certain land adjacent to
the Hawesville facility containing NSA’s former potliner dis-
posal areas, which are the sources of cyanide contamination in
the facility’s groundwater. Southwire retained full responsibility
for this land, which was never owned by Metalsco and is
located on the north boundary of the Hawesville site. In addi-
tion, Southwire indemnified the Company against all risks
associated with off-site hazardous material disposals by NSA
which pre-date the closing of the acquisition.

Under the terms of the Company’s agreement to purchase
NSA, Southwire secured its indemnity obligations for environ-
mental liabilities for seven years after the closing by posting
a $15,000 letter of credit issued in the Company’s favor, with
an additional $15,000 to be posted if Southwire’s net worth
drops below a pre-determined level during that period. The
Company’s indemnity rights under the agreement are shared
pro rata with Giencore. The amount of security Southwire
provides may increase (but not above $15,000 or $30,000, as
applicable) or decrease (but not below $3,000) if certain
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specified conditions are met. The Company cannot be certain
that Southwire will be able to meet its indemnity obligations. In
that event, under certain environmental laws which impose lia-
bility regardless of fault, the Company may be liable for any
outstanding remedial measures required under the ROD and
for certain liabilities related to the unwanted properties. If
Southwire fails to meet its indemnity obligations or if the
Company’s shared or assumed liability is significantly greater
than anticipated, the Company’s financial condition, results of
operations and liquidity could be materially adversely affected.

The Company, together with all other past and present
owners of an alumina facility at St. Croix, Virgin Islands, has
entered into an Administrative Order on Consent with the
Environmental Protection Agency (the “Order”) pursuant to
which the signatories have agreed to carry out a Hydrocarbon

Recovery Plan to remove and manage oil floating on top of .

groundwater underlying the facility. Recovered hydrocarbons
and groundwater will be delivered to the adjacent petroleum
refinery where they will be received and managed. The owner
of the petroleum refinery will compensate the other signatories
by paying them the fair market value for the petroleum recov-
ered. Lockheed Martin Corporation (“Lockheed”), which sold
the facility to one of the Company’s affiliates, Virgin Islands
Alumina Corporation (“Vialco™), in 1989, has tendered indem-
nity and defense of this matter to Vialco pursuant to terms of
the Lockheed-Vialco Asset Purchase Agreement. The
Company also gave certain environmental indemnity rights to
St. Croix Alumina, LLC (“St. Croix”), an indirect affiliate of
Alcoa, Inc., when it sold the facility to St. Croix. Those rights
extend only to environmental conditions arising from Vialco's
operation of the facility and then only after St. Croix has spent
$300 on such conditions. Vialco’s indemnification obligation
to St. Croix expired on July 24, 2001. Management does not
believe Vialco’s liability under this Order or its indemnification
obligation to St. Croix, if any, will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of opera-
tions, or liquidity.

It is the Company’s policy to accrue for costs associated with envi-
ronmental assessments and remedial efforts when it becomes
probable that a liability has been incurred and the costs can
be reasonably estimated. The aggregate environmental related
accrued liabilities were $1,800 and $900 at December 31, 2001
and December 31, 2000, respectively. All accruals have been
recorded without giving effect to any possible recoveries.
With respect to ongoing environmental compliance costs,
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including maintenance and monitoring, such costs are
expensed as incurred.

Because of the issues and uncertainties described above, and
the Company’s inability to predict the requirements of the
future environmental laws, there can be no assurance that
future capital expenditures and costs for environmental com-
pliance will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s future financial condition, results of operations, or
liquidity. Based upon all available information, management
does not believe that the outcome of these environmental mat-
ters, or environmental matters concerning Mt. Holly, will have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition,
results of operations, or liquidity.

Legal Contingencies Century of West Virginia was a named
defendant (along with many other companies) in approximately
2,362 civil actions brought by employees of third party
contractors who allege asbestos-related diseases arising
out of exposure at facilities where they worked, including
Ravenswood. All of those actions relating to the Ravenswood
facility have been settled as to the Company and as to Kaiser.
Only 14 plaintiffs were able to show they had been on the
Ravenswood premises during the period the Company owned
the plant, and the Company has agreed to settle all of those
claims for non-material amounts. The Company is awaiting
receipt of final documentation of those settlements and entry
of dismissal orders. The Company does not expect the Kaiser
Bankruptcy will have any effect on the settlements it has
reached on asbestos claims.

The Company has pending against it or may be subject to vari-
ous other lawsuits, claims and proceedings related primarily to
employment, commercial, environmental and safety and health
matters. Although it is not presently possible to determine the
outcome of these matters, management believes their uitimate
disposition will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s ﬁnancial condition, results of operations, or liquidity.

In August 1999, an illegal, one-day work stoppage temporarily
shut down one of the Company’s four production lines at the
Ravenswood facility. The cost of this work stoppage is esti-
mated to be approximately $10,000 including equipment dam-
aged as a result of the production line shutdown. During 2000,
the Company filed a claim with its insurance carrier for busi-
ness interruption and equipment damage relative to the work
stoppage and received partial settlement of approximately



$6,100. During 2001, the Company received an additional
$3,365 as final settlement of the claim.

Power Commitments The Company purchases all of the elec-
tricity requirements for the Ravenswood facility from Ohio
Power Company pursuant to a fixed price power supply agree-
ment. That agreement expires on July 31, 2003. American
Electric Power Company (the parent of Chio Power Company)
has advised the Company that the Company is eligible to enter
into a new fixed-price power supply agreement with Ohio
Power upon the termination of its existing agreement. The new
agreement, the terms of which are established by a tariff
approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, would
expire not later than December 31, 2005. The tariff was created
pursuant to a requirement of the State of Ohio’s electric power
deregulation act and will govern electrical power service dur-
ing a transitional period in which competitive power markets
are expected to be developed.

Power for the Mt. Holly facility is provided under a contract
with the South Carolina Public Service Authority that expires
on December 31, 2005. That contract provides pricing fixed by
Authority Rate Schedules and Clauses (including a fuel cost
adjustment clause). The Hawesville facility currently purchases
all of its power from Kenergy Corp., a local retail electric coop-
erative, under a series of power supply contracts. Kenergy
acquires the power it provides to the Hawesville facility under
fixed-price contracts with a subsidiary of LG&E Energy Corp.,
with delivery guaranteed by LG&E. Approximately 72% of the
power is purchased from Kenergy at fixed prices under a
contract which runs through 2010. The remaining 28% is pur-
chased under other fixed price contracts with Kenergy which
become unpriced at various times from 2003 to 2005.

The Company is also subject to losses associated with equip-
ment shutdowns, caused by the loss or interruption of electrical
power, as well as by labor shortages and catastrophic events.
Power interruptions may have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business because it uses large amounts of elec-
tricity in the primary aluminum production process. Any loss of
power which causes an equipment shutdown can result in the
hardening or “freezing” of molten aluminum in the pots where
it is produced. If this occurs, significant losses can occur if
the pots are damaged and require repair or replacement, a
process that could limit or shut down the Company’s produc-
tion operations for a significant period of time. Certain shut-
downs not covered by insurance could be a default under the

revolving credit facility. No assurance can be given that a mate-
rial shutdown will not occur in the future or that such a shut-
down would not have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Although the Company maintains property damage insurance
to provide for the repair or replacement of damaged equip-
ment or property, as well as business interruption insurance
to mitigate losses resulting from any equipment failure or
production shutdown caused by a catastrophic event, the
Company may still be required to pay significant amounts
under the deductible provisions of those insurance policies. In
addition, coverage may not be sufficient to cover all losses
which result from a catastrophic event. Furthermore, Century
maintains insurance to cover losses resulting from damage to
the Company’s power suppliers’ facilities, or transmission
lines that would cause an interruption of the power supply
to the Company’s facilities. This insurance contains farge
deductibles and self-insured amounts and does not cover
losses resulting from a power loss due solely to lack of suffi-
cient electrical power resulting from unusually high usage in
the regions. The market for property and business interruption
insurance has tightened considerably since September 11,
2001. As a result, Century expects to pay significantly higher
premiums for these policies upon renewal in April, 2002. In
addition, these renewal policies are likely to contain higher
deductibles and self retention amounts than the expiring policies.

Labor Commitments Century of West Virginia’s hourly
employees, which comprise 39% of the Company’s workforce
are represented by the USWA and are currently working under
a four-year labor agreement that would have expired May 31,
2003. On March 8, 2002, the labor agreement was extended
through May 31, 2006.

The Hawesville LLC’s hourly employees, which comprise 41%
of the Company’s workforce, are represented by the USWA
and are currently working under a five-year labor agreement
effective April 1, 2001.

Other Commitments On January 23, 1996, the Company and
the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (“PBGC”) entered
into an agreement (the “PBGC Agreement”) which provided
that the Company make scheduled cash contributions to its
pension plan for hourly employees in 1996, 1997, 1998, and 1999.
The Company made its scheduled contributions for each of the
years. As part of the agreement, the Company had granted the
PBGC a first priority security interest in (i) the property, plant,
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and equipment at its Century of West Virginia facility and
(iiy all of the outstanding shares of Berkeley. On February 2,
2001 the agreement with the PBGC, dated January 23, 1996, was
terminated and the PBGC agreed to release its first priority
security interest.

The Company may be required to make post-closing pay-
ments to Southwire up to an aggregate maximum of $7,000 if
the price of primary aluminum on the London Metal Exchange
(“LME”) exceeds specified levels during the seven years fol-
lowing closing of the Hawesville acquisition. Glencore will be
responsible for its pro-rata portion of any post-closing pay-
ments made to Southwire.

Note 13. Forward Delivery Contracts and Financial Instruments

As a producer of primary aluminum products, the Company is
exposed to fluctuating raw material and primary aluminum
prices. The Company routinely enters into fixed and market
priced contracts for the sale of primary aluminum and the pur-
chase of raw materials in future periods.

In connection with the sale of its aluminum fabricating busi-
nesses to Pechiney in September 1999, the Company entered
into a Molten Aluminum Purchase Agreement (the “Pechiney
Metal Agreement”) with Pechiney that expires July 31, 2003
with provisions for extension. Pursuant to the Pechiney Metal
Agreement, Pechiney purchases, on a monthly basis, at least 23.0
million pounds and no more than 27.0 million pounds of molten
aiuminum at a price determined by a market-based formula.

Concurrent with the Company’s purchase of an additional 23%
interest in the Mt. Holly facility from Xstrata, effective April 1,
2000, the Company entered into a 10-year agreement with
Glencore (the “Glencore Metal Agreement”) to sell approxi-
mately 110 million pounds of primary aluminum products per
year. Selling prices of the Glencore Metal Agreement through
December 31, 2001 are determined by a market-based formula
while the remaining eight years are at a fixed price as defined
in the agreement.

In connection with the Hawesville acquisition in April 2001, the
Company entered into a 10-year contract with Southwire (the
“Southwire Metal Agreement”) to supply 240 million pounds of
high-purity molten aluminum annually to Southwire’s wire and
cable manufacturing facility located adjacent to the Hawesville
facility. Under this contract, Southwire will alsc purchase 60
million pounds of standard grade molten aluminum each
year for the first five years of the contract, with an option to
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purchase an equal amount in each of the remaining five years.
Assuming the option is exercised, this represents approxi-
mately 57% of the production capacity of the Hawesville facil-
ity through the duration of the contract. The Company and
Glencore will each be responsible for providing a pro rata por-
tion of the aluminum supplied to Southwire under this con-
tract. The price for the molten aluminum to be delivered to
Southwire from the Hawesville facility is variable and will be
determined by reference to the U.S. Midwest Market Price.
This agreement expires on December 31, 2010, and will auto-
matically renew for additional five-year terms, unless either
party provides 12 months notice that it has elected not to renew.

Apart from the Pechiney Metal Agreement, Glencore Metal
Agreement and Southwire Metal Agreement, the Company had
forward delivery contracts to sell 377.1 million pounds and 50.3
million pounds of primary aluminum at December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2000, respectively. Of these forward delivery
contracts, 25.5 million pounds and 14.7 million pounds at
December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively, were
with the Glencore Group.

The Company was party to a long-term supply agreement to
purchase 936 million pounds of alumina annually through the
end of 2001. Beginning on January 1, 2002, that agreement was
replaced by new long-term alumina supply agreements with
Glencore which terminate on December 31, 2006. These new
agreements provide that Glencore will supply a fixed guantity
of alumina at prices determined by a market-based formula. In
addition, as part of its acquisition of an additional 23% interest
in the Mt. Holly facility, the Company assumed an alumina sup-
ply agreement with Glencore for its alumina requirements rela-
tive to the additional interest. This agreement terminates in
2008 and is priced with a market-based formula. As part of its
acquisition of NSA, the Company assumed an alumina supply
agreement with Kaiser. That agreement expires in 2005 and is
a variable-priced market based contract. The Company has
received assurances from Kaiser management that Kaiser will
continue to perform under this alumina supply agreement, and
the Company is seeking to have the contract assumed through
the bankruptcy process, but there can be no assurance the
Company will be successful.

To mitigate the volatility in its market priced forward delivery
contracts, the Company enters into fixed price financial sales
contracts, which settle in cash in the period corresponding to
the intended delivery dates of the forward delivery contracts.



At December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, the Company
had financial instruments, primarily with the Glencore Group,
for 248.8 million pounds and 453.5 million pounds, respectively.
These financial instruments are scheduled for settlement at
various dates in 2002 through 2003. The Company had no fixed
price financial or delivery purchase contracts for aluminum at
December 31, 2001. Additionally, to mitigate the volatility of the
natural gas markets, the Company enters into fixed price
financial purchase contracts, which settle in cash in the period
corresponding to the intended usage of natural gas. At
December 31, 2001, the Company had financial instruments for
3.1 million DTHs (one decatherm is equivalent to one million
British Thermal Units). These financial instruments are sched-
uled for settlement at various dates in 2002 through 2005.
Based on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments
as of December 31, 2001, accumulated other comprehensive
income of $2,048 is expected to be reclassified to earnings
over the next twelve month period.

The forward financial sales and purchase contracts are subject
to the risk of non-performance by the counterparties.
However, the Company only enters into forward financial con-
tracts with counterparties it determines to be creditworthy. If
any counterparty failed to perform according to the terms of
the contract, the accounting impact would be limited to the
difference between the nominal value of the contract and the
market value on the date of settlement.

Note 14. Related Party Transactions

The significant related party transactions occurring during the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, and not dis-
cussed elsewhere in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, are described beiow.

Related Party Transactions—Century During the years 1999,
2000 and 2001 and at December 31, 2001, the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Century was a member of the Board of
Directors of Glencore International AG. In addition, during the
years ended and at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, one of
Century’s Board members was the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Glencore International AG.

Related Party Transactions—Century of West Virginia During
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, Century of
West Virginia purchased and sold alumina, primary and scrap
aluminum in transactions with Glencore at prices which man-
agement believes approximated market.

Related Party Transactions—Berkeley A substantial portion of
Berkeley’s sales during the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999 were to Glencore.

Summary A summary of the aforementioned related party
transactions for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Net sales $111,469 $129,320 $ 68,801
Purchases 19,964 16,993 63,256
Management fees 416 - -
Net gain (loss) on

forward contracts 0} 2,261 (5,368)

See Note 13 for a discussion of the Company’s fixed-price
commitments and forward financial contracts with related parties.

Note 15. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Cash paid for:

Interest $ 21,114 $ 371 $ 6,305

Income taxes 934 771 2,021
Cash received from:

Interest 891 2,675 1,670

Income tax refunds 66 13,322 174

Non-Cash Investing Activities During the vyears ended
December 31, 2001 and 1999, $250 and $1,845, respectively, of
interest cost incurred in the construction of equipment was
capitalized. No interest was capitalized during the year ended
December 31, 2000.

Note 16. Business Segments

Prior to September 21, 1999, the Company operated in two
reportable business segments; primary aluminum and sheet
and plate products. The primary aluminum segment produces
molten metal, rolling ingot, t-ingot, extrusion billet and foundry
ingot. The sheet and plate segment produced a wide range of
products such as brazing sheet for sale to automobile manu-
facturers, heat treated and non-heat treated plate for sale to
aerospace and defense manufacturers, heavy gauge, wide-
leveled coil for sale to heavy truck, truck trailer, marine and
rail car manufacturers and sheet and coil for sale to building
products manufacturers.
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The accounting policies of the segments were the same as
those described in Note 1 “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies” except that intersegment revenues were accounted
for based upon a market-based standard established by the
Company. The Company evaluated segment performance
based upon gross profit.

2001

Net Sales
Third-party and intersegment customers
Related party customers

Depreciation and amortization

Segment gross profit ©

Segment assets (1)

Expenditures for segment assets

2000

Net Sales
Third-party and intersegment customers
Related party customers

Depreciation and amortization

Segment gross profit (4)

Segment assets (1)

Expenditures for segment assets

1999

Net Sales
Third-party and intersegment customers
Related party customers

Depreciation and amortization

Segment gross profit (loss) @ @

Segment assets ()

Expenditures for segment assets

Effective with the sale of the sheet and plate segment to
Pechiney on September 21, 1999, the Company now operates
in one business segment: primary aluminum,.

Corporate,

Unailocated
Primary Sheet and Plate & Eliminations Total
$ 543,453 $ - $ - $ 543,453
111,469 - - 111,469
44,247 - 187 44,433
20,708 - - 20,708
757,774 - 18,932 776,706
14,456 - - 14,456
$ 299,277 $ - $ - $ 299,277
129,320 - - 129,320
14,208 - 187 14,395
32,458 - - 32,458
327,131 - 6,639 333,770
17,631 - - 17,631
$ 248569  $385754  $(136,848)  $ 497,475
68,801 - - 68,801
9,985 8,577 187 18,749
(17,418) 10,773 - (6,645)
303,992 - 6,810 310,802
14,737 8,246 - 22,983

(1) Segment assets include accounts receivable, due from affiliates, inventory, intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment-net, the remaining assets are unallocated corporate assets, deferred

tax assets and intersegment eliminations.
(2) The primary segment includes a charge of $4,623 for inventory adjustments.
(3) The sheet and plate segment includes a charge of $7,649 for inventory adjustments.
(4) Includes a charge of $1,631 for Inventory adjustments.
(5} Includes a charge of $5,166 for inventory adjustments.

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the
following amounts related to geographic locations:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Net Sales
United States $ 654,922 §$ 428,597 $ 501,655
Canada - - 38,572
Europe - - 15,840
Other - - 10,209
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At December 31, 2001 and 2000, all of the Company’s long-
lived assets were located in the United States.

Revenues from Glencore represented 17.0%, 30.2% and 12.1%
of the Company’s consolidated revenues in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. Revenues from Pechiney represented 31.1%,
55.1% and 10.4% of the Company’s consolidated sales in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively. Revenues from Southwire repre-
sented 18.9% of the Company’s consolidated sales in 2001.



Note 17. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following information includes the results from the
Company’s additional 23% interest in Mt. Holly facility since its
acquisition in April 2000, and the results from the Company’s
80% interest in the Hawesville facility since its acquisition on
April 1, 2001.

Financial results by guarter for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 are as follows:

Gross Net Income
Net Profit Net Income {Loss)
Sales (Loss) (Loss) Per Share
2001
1st Quarter®  $ 110,690 $ 8420 $ 3,151 $ 015
2nd Quarter M 188,919 13,765 843 0.04
3rd Quarter M@ 183,371 3,270 (4,342) 0.21)
4th Quarter @ 171,942 (4,747)  (14,854) (0.72)
2000
1st Quarter® § 96,449 $ 8,167 $ 5,627 $ 0.28
2nd Quarter 109,065 7,873 6,897 0.34
3rd Quarter 111,103 8,077 4,349 0.21
4th Quarter ® 111,980 8,341 8,432 0.41

(1) Gross profit in the first, second, and third quarters of 2001 include reclassifications of selling,
general, and administrative expenses, principally from Hawesville, of $42, $2,522, and $1,642,
respectively, to cost of goods sold for reporting consistency purposes.

(2) The third quarter 2001 includes a non cash charge of $3,175 for inventory adjustments and
proceeds of $3,365 on final settlements of insurance claims.

(3) The fourth quarter 2001 gross profit includes charges of $1,991 for inventory adjustments.
Selling, general and administrative expense includes a $4,000 charge for bad debts and other
expense includes a charge for loss on disposal of assets of $919.

(4) The first quarter 2000 gross profit includes charges of $1,631 for inventory adjustments.

(5) The second quarter 2000 income includes an additional pre-tax gain on the sale of the fabri-
cating businesses of $5,156 and proceeds of $3,000 in partial settlement of the Company's
claim with its insurance carrier.

(6) The fourth guarter 2000 income includes proceeds of $3,085 in partial settlement of the
Company’s claim with its insurance carrier.

Note 18. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information

The Company’s 11 3/4% Senior Secured First Mortgage Notes
due 2008 are jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by all of the Company’s material wholly owned
direct and indirect subsidiaries (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”).
Condensed consolidating financial information was not pro-
vided for the periods prior to the acquisition because: (i)
Century Aluminum Company has no independent assets or
operations, (ii) the guarantees are full and unconditional and
joint and several, and (iii) for those periods, any subsidiaries of
the Company other than the subsidiary guarantors were minor.
As of December 31, 2001, as a result of the acquisition of the
Hawesville facility, Century indirectly holds an 80% equity
interest in Century Aluminum of Kentucky, LLC (“LLC") and as

such consolidates 100% of the assets, liabilities and opera-
tions of the LLC into its financial statements, showing the
interest of the 20% owners as “Minority Interests.” LLC (the
“Non-Guarantor Subsidiary”) has not guaranteed the Exchange
Notes, and the Company has not caused its indirect equity
interests in the LLC to be pledged as collateral for the
Exchange Notes. The Company’s interest in the Mt. Holly facil-
ity’s property, plant and equipment has not been pledged as
collateral. Other subsidiaries of the Company which are imma-
terial will not guarantee the Notes (collectively, the “Non-
Guarantor Subsidiaries”). During 2001, the Company adopted
a policy for financial reporting purposes of allocating expenses
to subsidiaries. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the
Company allocated total corporate expenses of $8.5 million to
its subsidiaries. Additionally, the Company charges interest
on certain intercompany balances.

Because the LLC is not a minor subsidiary, the Company is
providing condensed consolidating financial information for
the periods following the Company’s acquisition of the
Hawesville facility. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for information about the terms of the Exchange
Notes. These terms contain customary covenants limiting the
ability of both the Company and the Guarantor Subsidiaries, to
pay dividends, incur additional debt, make investments, sell
assets or stock of certain subsidiaries and purchase or redeem
capital stock.

The following summarized condensed consolidating financial
information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001
presents separate results for Century Aluminum Company, the
Guarantor Subsidiaries and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiary.

This summarized condensed consolidating financial informa-
tion may not necessarily be indicative of the results of opera-
tions or financial position had the Company, the Guarantor
Subsidiaries or the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries operated as
independent entities.

55



Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, trade—net
Due from affiliates

Inventories

Prepaid and other assets

Total current assets
Investment in Subsidiaries
Property, Plant and Equipment—net
Intangible Asset—net
Due from Affiliates—Less current portion
Other Assets

Total

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable, trade

Due to affiliates

Industrial revenue bonds

Accrued and other current liabilities

Accrued employee benefits costs—current portion

Total current liabilities
Long Term Debt—Net

Accrued Pension Benefit Costs—Less current portion
Accrued Postretirement Benefit Costs—Less current portion

Other Liabilities
Deferred Taxes

Total noncurrent liabilities
Minority Interest
Shareholders’ Equity:
Convertible preferred stock
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive Income

Retained earnings (deficit)
Total shareholders’ equity
Total

56

Combined
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 1,020
48,365
50,722
46,649

7,395
154,151
95,670
424,653
8,364
20,467

$ 708,305

$ 19,022
351,690
16,437
7,653

395,702
1,555
45,008
9,833
42,788

99,184

59
226,996
6,752
(25,388)
208,419

$ 703,305

As of December 31, 2001

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiary

$ -
838
28,568

98

29,504
878
146,002

1,674
$ 178,058

$ 22472
1,998
7,815
5,269

147

37,701

20,619
151

20,770

139,281

(19,694)
119,587
$ 178,058

The Company

$ 12,368
345
366,855

1,329
380,897
208,419

475

16,784
$ 606,575

$ -
47,089

17,680

64,769
321,446
2,462

713

324,621

25,000
205
168,414
6,752
16,814
217,185
$ 606,575

Reclassifications
and Eliminations

$ -

(398,648)

(5,249)
(403,897)
(304,089)

(3,246)
$(711,232)

$ -
(398,576)

(5,321)

(403,897)

(59)
(366,277)
(6,752)
45,082
(328,006)
(711,232)

Consolidated

$ 13,388
48,710
19,767
75,217

38,573

160,655
426,006
146,002
8,364
35,679

$ 776,706

$ 42,394
2,201
7,815

34,0865
7,800

94,275
321,446
4,017
65,627
10,697
39,542

441,329
23,917

25,000
205
168,414
6,752
16,814
217,185
$ 776,706



Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Net sales:
Third-party customers
Related parties

Cost of Goods Sold

Reimbursement From Owners

Gross Profit (Loss)

Selling, General and Admin Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Interest Income (Expense), Net

Other Income (Expense), Net

Income {Loss) Before Taxes

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit

Net Income (Loss) Before Minority Interest
Minority Interest, Net of Tax

Equity Earnings (Loss) of Subsidiaries
Net Income (Loss)

Combined
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 543,453
111,469

654,922
614,052

40,870
18,787

22,083
(30,512)
1,948
(6,481)
2,547
(3,934)

(9,768)
$ (13,702)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiary

$ —

252,615
(233,521)

(19,094)
742
(19,836)
(162)
304

(19,694)

(19,694)

$ (19,694)

The Company

(13,702)
$ (13,702)

Reclassifications
and Eliminations

$ —

(232,453)
233,521
(1,068)
931)
(137)

137

7,484
7,484
2,442

23,470

$ 33,396

Consolidated

$ 543,453
111,469
654,922
634,214

20,708
18,598
2,110
(30,674)
2,389
(26,175)
10,031
(16,144)
2,442

$ (13,702)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Net Cash Provided by (used in) Operating Activities
Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Divestitures
Business acquisition

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Financing Activities:
Borrowings, third party
Financing fees
Dividends
Intercompany transactions
Issuance of preferred stock

Net Cash Provided by (used in) Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

Beginning cash
Ending cash
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Combined
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 40,526

$

(14,082)
54
98,971

(466,814)

(381,871)

309,403

309,403
(31,942)

32,962
1,020

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiary

$ (3,817)

(874)

4,191

4,191

$ -

The Company

$ 16,073

321,352
(16,568)
(5,736)
(327,753)
25,000
(8,705)
12,368

$ 12,368

Reclassifications
and Eliminations

$ (14,159
14,159
14,159

$ -

Consolidated

$ 38,623

$

(14,456)
54
98,971

(466,814)

(382,245)

321,352
(16,568)
(5,736)

25,000
324,048
(19,574)

32,962
13,388



Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following table presents consolidated financial data of the
Company for the years indicated. The selected consolidated
financial data from Statements of Operations for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001 and
the Selected Financial Data from Consolidated Balance Sheets
as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are derived from the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company included
elsewhere herein which have been audited by Deloitte &
Touche LLP. The Selected Consolidated Financial Data from
Statements of Operations for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31, 1998, and the Selected Consolidated
Financial Data from Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is derived from the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Company which are
not included herein. The following historical financial data
includes the results from the Company’s rolting and fabrication
businesses until their sale in September 1999, the results from
the Company’s additional 23% interest in the Mt. Holly facility
since its acquisition in April 2000, and the results for the
Company’s 80% interest in the Hawesville facility since its
acquisition on April 1, 2001. Accordingly, the following results
are not indicative of the Company’s current business. The infor-
mation set forth below should be read in conjunction with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and notes thereto.

Year ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2001@ 2000@ 1999 (1 1998 1997
Statement of Operations Data

Net sales—third party customers $ 543,453 $ 299,277 $ 497,475 $ 576,006 $ 615,467
Net sales—related parties 111,469 129,320 68,801 74,252 105,521
Total net sales 654,922 428,597 566,276 650,258 720,988
Cost of goods sold 634,214 396,139 572,921 611,796 691,887
Gross profit (loss) 20,708 32,458 (6,645) 38,462 29,101
Selling, general and administrative expenses 18,598 13,931 18,884 19,246 17,948
Operating income (loss) 2,110 18,527 (25,529) 19,216 11,153
Gain on sale of fabricating businesses - 5,156 41,130 - -
Interest expense (81,565) (408) (5,205 (2,204) (3,066)
Interest income 891 2,675 1,670 - -
Other income (expense) 2,592 6,461 (789) 553 419
Net gain (loss) on forward contracts ¥ (203) 4,195 (5,368) 10,674 (6,837)
Income (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary item

and minority interest (26,175) 36,606 5,909 28,139 1,669
Income tax benefit (expense) 10,031 (11,301) (628) (10,202) (601)
Income (ioss) before extraordinary item and

minority interest (16,144) 25,305 5,281 17,937 1,068
Minority interest—net of income taxes 2,442 ~ - - -
Net income (loss) before extraordinary item (13,702) 25,305 5,281 17,937 1,068
Extraordinary item—write off of deferred bank fees,

net of income tax benefit of $766 - - (1,362) - -
Net income (loss) (13,702) 25,305 3,919 17,937 1,068
Preferred dividends (1,500) - - - -
Earnings (loss) available to common shareholders $ (15,202) $ 25,305 $ 3919 $§ 17,937 $ 1,068
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data

Continued

Year ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000 @ 1999 M) 1998 1997

Basic earnings (loss) per common share:

income (loss) before extraordinary item $ @©749 $ 125 § 026 § 080 % 0.05
Extraordinary item - - (0.07) - -
Net Income (loss) $ 0.74) % 1.25 $ 0.19 $ 0.90 $ 0.05
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary item $ 074y $ 1.24 $ 0.26 $ 0.89 $ 0.05
Extraordinary item - - (0.07) - -
Net Income (loss) $ 074 1.24 $ 019 $ 0.89 $ 0.05
Dividends per common share $ 0.20 3 0.20 $ 0.20 $ 0.20 $ 0.20
Year ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2001@® 2000@ 1999 ) 1998 1997
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Working capital $ 66,380 $ 76,701 $ 124,391 $ 188,156 $ 180,524
Intangible assets—power contract 146,002 - - - -
Total assets 776,706 333,770 310,802 545,630 507,148
Long-term debt 321,446 - - 89,389 58,950
Total noncurrent liabilities 441,329 74,511 58,831 252,782 220,604
Total shareholders’ equity 217,185 202,639 179,728 177,483 163,546

(1) On Septernber 21, 1999, the Company sold its rolling and fabrication businesses to Pechiney for $234.3 million and recorded pre-tax gains of $41.1 million in 1999 and $5.2 miltion in 2000. Accordingly,
the results of operations for 1999, 2000 and 2001 do not include results from the rolling and fabrication businesses after such date. Similarly, balance sheet data as of and following December 31,
1999 does not include the assets and liabilities related to the rolling and fabrication businesses.

{2) On April 1, 2000, the Company purchased an additional 23% interest in the Mt. Holly facility from Xstrata, an affiliate of Glencore, increasing the Company’s ownership interest to 49.7%. Accordingly,
the results of operations following that date reflect the increased production which resulted from that purchase. Similarly, balance sheet data as of and following December 31, 2000 includes the assets
and liabilities related to the additional 23% interest in the Mt. Holly facility.

(3) On April 1, 2001, the Company purchased the Hawesville facility from Southwire Company. Simultaneously, the Company effectively sold a 20% interest in the Hawesville facility to Glencore.
Accordingly, the results of operations following that date reflect the increased production which resulted from Century's 80% interest. Similarty, balance sheet data as of and following December 31,
2001 includes assets and liabilities related to the Company’s 80% interest in the Hawesville facility.,

{4) On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS Na. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and related amendments. As a result, to the extent that the Company's deriv-
atives are designated as effective cash flow hedges, unrealized gains (losses) will be reported as accumulated other comprehensive income, rather than reported in the Statement of Operations as
was done in 2000. Beginning in 2001, realized gains (losses) resuiting from hedging activities are reported as adjustments to net sales and cost of goods sold. See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—New Accounting Standards.”
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Corporate Information

Corporate Headquarters
Century Aluminum Company
2511 Garden Road
Monterey, CA 93940

Inquiries

Shareholders, security analysts, investors
and others may contact the company at
the above address or as indicated below:

In the United States
Toll Free 1-888-642-9300

Outside the United States,
Call Collect 1-831-642-9300

Website: www.centuryaluminum.com

Form 10-K Available

The Annual Report Form 10-K filed with
The Securities and Exchange Commission
is available without charge upon request.
Write or contact our corporate secretary at
the addresses or telephone numbers above.
An electronic version of the report also

is available through the company’s website.

Stock Transfer Agent

Computershare Investor Services LLC
2 North La Salle Street

Chicago, IL 60602

Telephone 312-360-5375

Fax 312-601-4335
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Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
2500 One PPG Place
Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
The 2002 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders will be held

June 25 at 9:00 a.m. at

the company’s corporate offices at
2511 Garden Road

Monterey, California 93940

Stock Trading Information

Century Aluminum common stock
is tfraded on the NASDAQ.

The ticker symbol is CENX.

Common
Stock
2001 High Low  Dividend
First Quarter $16.81 $ 9.88 $ 0.05
Second Quarter 23.06 1419 0.05
Third Quarter 20.35 7.40 0.05
Fourth Quarter 16.12 8.10 0.05
Billets, feedstock for
extruders, are ready for
shipment from the Mt.
Holly plant. Special billet
processing adds about
Design: Howry Design Associates, San Francisco, California 10 percent more value to
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